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United Utilities Water PLC

Managing Director’s statement

Performance

United Uuhties Water PLC has delivered a good set of financial results for the year ended 31 March 2008, marking a vear of strong growth
for the company

Turnover increased by 8 2 per cent to £1,426 4 nullion, prnincipally as a result of an allowed price increase of 4 4 per cent above inflation,
which supports the increased levels of capital investment made this year to improve operational and environmental standards and services
for our customers Operating profit increased te £651 1 million, up 14 5 per cent on last year, pnmarily reflecting the allowed price
increase, partially offset by a higher depreciation expense as a consequence of increased capital spend

Capital investment was 45 per cent higher than last year, reflecting the peak phase of the company’s 2005-10 expenditure programme A
revised strategy for processing and disposing of sewage sludge has recently been agreed with the Water Services Regulation Authority
(Ofwat), which should reduce our carbon footprint After adjusung for this strategy cumulative capital expenditure on water and
wastewater assets as at 31 March 2008 was broadly in line with regulatory assumptions The business remains on course 1o meet 1ts
regulatory efficiency targets and deliver its outputs across the 20035-10 penod

It 15 likely that there will be additional capital investment required, in the order of £700 mullion, mamly n respect of Unsatisfactory
Intermuttent Drscharges (UIDs) projects, that were not part of the company’s 2005-10 regulatory contract A large proportion of this
investment, as already endorsed by the Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (Defra) and currently awaiting determination
by Ofwat, 15 expected to fall into the 2010-15 period and be considered as part of the forthcoming price review

Looking beyond the financial results the board has been pleased with progress on important arcas such as leakage, water quality and
customer satisfaction

For the second consecutive year, the business outperformed its 2007/08 economic level of leakage rolling target of 465 megalitres per day
a tougher target than the previous year {(2006/07 470 megahtres per day) We are also pleased to report a 60 per cent reduction 1n the
number of senious pollution incidents compared with two years ago  We have continued to remove properties from our sewer flooding
register and have now achieved a net reduction of 32 per cent over the last two vears and remain on course to achieve our medium-term
target of a 50 per cent reduction In addition there were no water restrictions on customers durtng the year

The company supplies a high quality of dninking water, with a mean zonal compliance water quality performance of 99 94 per cent for the
year (2006/07 99 92 per cent} The company was ranked first among the United Kingdom’s water and sewerage companies in 2006/07 by
Ofwat for both water and wastewater in 1ts most recent asset serviceability assessment, reflecting the company’s long-term stewardship of
Its assets

Good progress was made this year regarding customer satisfaction levels, with 73 per cent of customers surveyed who had made an enquiry
being satisfied with the service received

Strategy
The three key elements of our current strategic plan are

»  Contimuing to 1mprove our operational performance,
*  Successfully delivering our 2005-10 regulatory contract, and
= Prepanng for the 2009 water price review

We aspire to be in the top quarter of the UK water sector on key operational measures in the medium-term  The business continues to
upgrade us infrastructure and replaced 650 kilometres of water mains during 2007/08  Although the company has delivered real progress,
there 1s more work to do m improving operational performance Dunng the year there was a higher level of sewer flooding incidents
influenced by adverse weather conditions Thas, together with environmental underperformance at our Fleetwood wastewater treatment
worhks will lead to a lower Overall Performance Assessment (OPA) score from Ofwat for 2007/08 compared with the prior year

We are investing over £3 billion between 2005 and 2010 to improve our network assets on behalf of our customers and the environment
Successfully delivertng the outputs required by Ofwat 1s of key importance and we have a clear plan for the remainder of this price review
penod and are confident of meeting our regulatory targets

The 2009 water price review 1s a key value driver for us, as it will set the price limits from 1 Apnl 2010 to 31 March 2015 We are
currently developing our draft five-year business plan scheduled for submission to Ofwat in August 2008 This plan forms the first
element of the long-term vision for our business as 1t adapts to the changing chimate and demographics of the north west

In December 2007, we pubhished our Strategic Direction Statement (SDS) entitled "where we are heading’, outliming the key issues facing
the business over the next 25 years The SDS 1s part of our preparation for the forthcommng price review and the six hey elements are as
described on page &




United Utilities Water PLC

Managing Director’s statement (continued)
The future

The company 1s pre-funded for its capital investment programme through to 2010 We recently improved our hquidity position by
enhancing our commutted medium-term bank facthties, providing us with increased flexibility i terms of when and how we raise further
debt finance

Our carbon action plan 1s progressing well through schemes which, in addition to helping the environment, also contribute to improving
company efficiency These schemes include targets for cutting emissions, increasing the efficiency of our pumping stations and using our
wastewater processes Lo gencrate electricity and heat

Stakeholders

We are committed to histemng and responding to the needs of our stakeholders employees, customers investors, regulators and our
commercial partners Understanding their requirements and then managing and reporting our performance 1s central to how we run our
business The cornerstone of this approach 15 our employees and [ would like to thank them for their conunuing commitment and hard
work

Chive Elphick
Managing Director
11 July 2008




United Utilities Water PLC

Operating and financial review
NATURE OF THE BUSINESS

Business overview

United Utthties Water PLC 1s a public mted company registered in England and Wales, providing wastewater and water services in
north west England The company was incorporated on 1 April 1989 under the Companies Act 1985

United Utilities Water PLC 1s a subsidiary of United Utihties North West PLC which, in turn, 15 a wholly owned subsidiary of United
Utilies PLC  The Untted Utthities PLC group (* the group °) 1s one of the largest operators of water and wastewater networks 1n the UK
This also mncludes the provision of operations and maintenance and shared services activities to Dwr Cymru Welsh Water and acting as
capital investment partners for Scottish Water and Southern Water The group also operates electnerty and gas networks and provides
multi-utility metering and connections services

Business description

The UK water industry 1s made up of local and regional companies operating the water and sewerage networks Figure | shows the
company’s operating boundary for the water and sewerage business  Under current legislation domestic and small commercial
customers have no ability to change their suppher Ofwat 1s the economic regulator of the water and sewerage industry in England and
Wales Its role 1s to seek value for consumers )

Figure 1. Water and wastewater operating boundary
The company’s activities comprise the operation of the licensed water and
wastewater assets 1n north west England This involves the removal and
treatment of wastewater from, and the treatment and distribution of around
19 billion litres of water a day to approxtmately 3 2 mullion homes and
businesses

The company’s activines are

+ capital 1ntensive — amprovements to the water and wastewater
infrastructure are required n order to comply with applicable UK and .
European Union (EU) environmental and drinking water quality regulations

Caprtal investment (including infrastructure renewals expenditure) relating

to water and wastewater tn the year ended 31 March 2008 was £825 million

* subject to economuc regulation — 1n general, the business 1s subject to
incentive-based economic regulation This imposes caps on increases In
customer prices, rewards efficiency and high standards of customer service
and penalises incfficiency and poor standards of customer service, and

Manchester

* subject to environmental regulations — these govern the abstraction of
water, the quality of drinking water supplied to the company’s custoemers,
the discharges 1t makes 1nto the water environment and the management of
potenirally contaminated land the company owns, occupies or works upon

Further developments i the regulatory regime are expected to take effect i the next few years in particular as a result of LU
environmental 1mtiatives (including the Water Framework Directive, the Drinking Water Directive and the Environmental Liabthity
Directive)

The Wastewater business

The company 1s responsible for the reception, conveyance, treatment and disposal of domestic wastewater, trade effluent (non-domestic
wastewater) and surface water in north west England

The company’s wastewater treatment worhs provide a range of treatments These include primary, secondary and tertiary treatment
mvelving a vaniety of physical, chemical and biological processes These aim to ensure the constituents of wastewalter are effectively
modified before discharge Fully treated final effluent 1s discharged into rivers, estuanes or via sea outfalls The Environment Agency
consents te and stringently monitors all these discharges to ensure they comply with all relevant limits - A by-product of the treatment of
wastewater is sewage sludge which 1s further treated to produce an end product that 1s suitable for recycling

The wastewater operations involve owning and managing assets, which include

» 582 wastewater treatment works,

» 43 419 kilometres of sewers

« 1 826 pumping stations

» 143 detention 1anks,

2 275 combined sewer overflows and 375 emergency overflows, and
+ 42 sludge treatment facilities




United Utilities Water PLC

Operating and financial review (continued)
NATURE OF THE BUSINESS (CONTINUED)
The Water business

The company obtains water from various sources including reservoirs rivers and aquifers A large proportion of the water that the
company supplies flows freecly by gravity and does not need to be pumped However, due to the nature of the water catchment areas
bemng peaty moorlands or coal measure strata, enhanced treatment methods are required o ensure the water satisfies all regulatory and
quality standards

This untreated water 1s conveyed to treatment works by aqueducts  Treated water 15 delivered to the company’s customers through a
network of large diameter trunk mains to smaller trunk mains service reservoirs water towers and distribution matns

The company owns, operates and manages the water network assets in north west England which include

* 137 operational and one emergency impounding reservoirs and associated catchments
* 95 operational and five emergency water treatment works

* 450 service reservours and water towers storing treated water,

* 609 pumping stations, and

* 42 219 kilometres of clean water mains

the company owns approximately 57,800 hectares of catchment land  The key reason for owning and managing this land 1s to protect
and 1mprove the quahty of raw water supplies and thus reduce the nish of non-complhance at water trcatment works and avoid
unnecessary operating costs

In the 2004 price review, the company obtained funds of £10 mullion for an wnnovative approach to land management entitled the
Sustammable Catchment Management Programme’ (SCaMP)} This programme seeks to restore moorland areas so as to meet the
government’s Pubhic Service Agreement targets to bring Sites of Special Scientfic Interest into good condition

At the same time the company seeks to enter into long-term agreements with tenant farmers to reduce hivestock to acceptable levels so
that, once restored, the moorland areas will be protected for the future  This integrated hohistic approach should bring multiple benefits
As well as delivenng the government’s biodiversity targets, 1t 15 anticipated that there will be improvements in raw water quality
(relating in particular to colour) and potentially reduced risk of downstream flooding

T he programme has just completed 1ts third year and 1s being apphed to all the farms owned on both our Bowland and southern estates
and we have been successful in concluding agreements with tenant farmers coverning over 90 per cent of the land area in the programme
to enable this to happen  Substantial work 1s now underway 1n both areas

The company s capital investment (including infrastructure renewals expenditure) for the year 10 31 March 2008 was £825 million  This
represents an increase 1n expenditure of 45 per cent when compared with the previous financial year and reflects the planned profile of
the group’s investment programme Cumulative capital expenditure on water assets as at 31 March 2008 matched rcgulatory
assumptions




United Utilities Water PLC

Operating and financial review (continued)

REGULATORY DEVELOPMENTS

The UK government awarded [nstruments of Appointment ( licences’) for the provision of wastewater services and water supply n
1989 These licences continue in force for an indefinite period, subject 1o potential termination rights as set out below  1he company
holds the licence for an area of north west England which compnises 3 2 mullion homes and businesses The Water Industry Act 1991
{the ‘Act’), as amended by the Water Act 2003 (the WA 2003°), provides for the appowmntment (by way of hcensing) of water and
wastewater undertakers Economic regulation pursuant to these licences 1s currently the responsibility of Ofwat  Ofwat also exercises
powers under UK competition legislation, most significantly the Competition Act 1998 and the Enterprise Act 2002

Ofwat regulates wastewater and water charges by capping the average increase 1n charges that @ company can 1mpose 1 any given year
Ofwat conducts a price review and sels price caps every five years Ofwal has announced that it intends to maintan this five-year price
control but that it will place price hmits within a longer term framework For example, 1t wilt ask water companies for a 25-year business
plan at the next price control review 1n 2009

This price cap 1s set by Ofwat by reference to inflation as measured by the retail price index in the UK plus an adjustment factor known
as ‘K’, which 1s specific to each company and which can vary for each year of the review period The size of a company’s K factor
(which can be positive, negative or zero) reflects the scale of its capital investment programme, its cost of capital and its operational and
environmental obligations, taking into account the scope for it to improve 1ts efficiency  Price cap’ regulation, as operated in the UK, 1s
performance based companies are incentivised to be efficient both in terms of their operating costs and 1n the implementation of their
capital expenditure programme

The benefit of any efficiency savings achieved through effective management 1s retained by the companies for a period of five years
afier which time the benefit 1s passed to customers via the subsequent price setting process The cost of any under-performance due to
poor management Is borne by the companies  Companies are also incentivised to provide a high quality of service and penahsed if they
provide a poor quahty of service by means of an adjustment to the K factor at the subsequent price review

The last price review was completed in December 2004 and covers the period from 1 April 2005 to 31 March 2010 In the last review
Ofwat set the following K factors, being the amount by which prices are allowed to nse above inflation 1n each of the five financial years
commencing on | Apnl 2005

2005/06 3 0 per cent
2006/07 6 4 per cent
2007/08 4 4 per cent
2008/09 3 5 per cent
2009/10 3 0 per cent

This equates to a real (1 ¢ excluding inflation) average annual price increase over the five-year period of 4 5 per cent Ofwat 1s currently
reviewing its cost base methodology 1n preparation for the next price review Unexpected costs or savings ansing from changes 1n
certain regulatory assumptions during a review period are recorded and agreed by the company and Ofwat  This process, known as
‘logging up and down’, allows prices to be adjusted up or down at the next price review to compensate (companies or customers) for the
uncxpected change In addition, where the change exceeds the specified mateniality thresholds, the company can request, and Ofwat can
instigate, a re-setting of 1ts pnce hoit duning the five-year pertiod hnown as an Intenm Determination of K ( IDoK™)  All water and
sewerage companies’ licences now include a shipwreck’ or substantial effect’ clause, which allows compames’ price hmits to be
revised when events beyond their control have had a significant effect on their costs or turnover

Environmental regulation

The water and wastewater industry 1n the UK 1s subject to substantial domestic and EU regulauon, placing sigmficant statutory
obligations on the company with regard to among other factors the quality of treated water supplied and of wastewater treatment
European Directtves {(including the Drinking Water Directive, the Bathing Water Directive and the Urban Wastewater Treatment
Directive) are transposed into UK law by primary and secondary legislation

All water and wastewater companies have a general duty to exercise their powers to conserve and enhance natural beauty and to promote
the efficient use of water Environmental regulation 1s the responsibihity of the Secretary of Siate for Environment, Food and Rural
Affairs together with

= The Environment Agency, which 1s responsible for conserving and redistnbuting water resources and securing the proper uses of those
resources, including the licensing of water abstraction The Agency also regulates discharges to controlled waters including discharges
from wastewater treatment works,

« The Drinking Water Inspectorate, which enforces drinking water quality standards, and

= Natural England, (formerly English Nature), which 1s responsible for the protection of designated sites for nature conservation, e g
Sites of Special Scientific Interest There 1S a statutory requirement to manage these sites to conserve or 1mprove biodiversity As a
result of new UK government targets, Natural England 1s seehing improvements to approvimately 50 per cent of the sites within the
company’s ownership




United Utilities Water PLC

Operating and financial review (continued)
REGULATORY DEVELOPMENTS (CONTINUED)
Strategic Direction Statement

Consistent with its approach to longer-term asset planning, in December 2007 the company pubhshed 1ts Strategic Direction Statement
(SDS) which considers the needs of the north west region out to 2035 The SDS enables the company to set its plans for the next price
review period (2010-15) in this longer-term context, develop sustainable solutions and respond to future challenges

The six key elements identified i the SDS are

* Responsible long-term stewardship of networks
This includes protecting health and the environment, improving understanding of network performarnce and mvesting in research and
new technology with clear efficiency and service benefits

» Listening and responding to the views of customers and other stakeholders

Ensuring that the company’s plans meet the changing needs and prionities of customers and other stakeholders and provide good value
for money The company recently undertook a substantial customer survey which 1dentificd key areas where customers are willing to
pay for improvements including supply interruptions sewer flooding odour and reductions 1n greenhouse gas emissions  Customer
priorities can help shape future investment programmes aligning expenditure to those areas that customers constder most important

« Making water resources more sustainable and resilient
This means improving both the company’s own and customers water efficiency ensuning the company enhances and protects its
network and developing water resources 1o help address increasing drought nsk and meet supply and demand requirements

* An integrated approach to drainage to reduce flooding risk
Storm water volumes entering the sewer system need to be reduced and the government’s proposal to transfer responsibility for private
sewers from houscholders to water companies will facilitate a more wmtegrated approach to this challenge

* Reduce the company’s carbon impact
The company aims to work together with the other companies n the United Utilities group to halve the group’s greenhouse gases by
2035, supported by achieving energy neutrality for its wastewater operations

* Bills to rise, on average, no faster than incomes
The company believes that the water and wastewater services 1t provides are already of good value but there will be future upward
pressure on costs

Chimate change and sustainability

T he implications of chimate change on drought and flood nisk are set to feature strongly n the company’s plans for decades to come and
these 1mphcations will be incorporated 1n the forthcoming price review submission  The importance of this 15 recogmised by the
government, which intends to publish a draft Floods and Water Bill for consultation later in the year
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Operating and financial review (continued)
REGULATORY DEVELOPMENTS (CONTINUED)
2009 water price review

The company’s preparations for the forthcoming price review are well advanced and 1 1s in active dehberations with its regulators and
other key stakeholders  In March 2008, Ofwat published its methodology for the 2009 water price review which will set price hmits for
the five-year perod starting 1 April 2010 In many respects, the methodology 1s similar to that used 1n previous price reviews but the
company 15 pleased to note the increased focus on the 1ssues of climate change and sustainability

Following the outcome of the Umited Utllities group’s recent capital structure review, the company’s board announced that it will be
targeting an A3 credit rating for the company whach 1t beheves best mirrors Ofwat’s assumptions for the 2005-10 regulatory pertod The
company’s board believes this to be an appropriate investment grade rating to allow the company to raise finance 1o fund uts substantial
capital investment programmes

The company believes that Ofwat should ensure that comparues can at least maintain an A3 ratng and should consider recent
developments in the credit markets The raising of debt finance 1s particularly important given the likely scale of investment that 15 still
required in the water industry to replace and refurbish ageing infrastructure address flooding risk and climate change and deliver further
statutory environmental obligauions and customer prioriies  The company beheves sigmficant invesiment will be required during the
next price review period (2010-15) and beyond

Unsatisfactory Intermittent Discharges (UlDs)

It 1s likely that there will be additional capital investment required, mainly 1n respect of UID projects, that were not part of the company’s
2005-10 regulatory contract A large proportion of this investment, as already endorsed by Defra and awaiting determination by Ofwat,
1s expected to fall into the 2010-15 perwod and be considered as part of the forthcoming price review The company estimates that the
additional funding Iikely to be required to complete this UID programme, which 1s designed to meet statutory obligations and deliver
environmental benefits, could be in the order of £700 million

RESOURCES
People

The company has been working over the past year to define what leadership across our business should look ke Our senior leaders
have attended development workshops as part of this process and we are estabhshing a leadership communications forum aimed at
sharing knowledge and information

To attract, retain and develop skills and talent acress the company a key part of the human resources strategy focuses on building a skills
and talent pipeline This strategy details the skuils, capabilhities and numbers of people the company needs for future success The
company intends to grow internal talent and attract talent from the external market to bridge any gaps it has A ‘umversity’ concept has
been developed to provide development support in leadership, technical and core skills  This will be launched to employees during 2008

The company’s employees are fundamental to 1ts business success [t 1s vital they understand the business direction feel pride in their
work and are motivated to go the extra mile for their customers Therefore, the company now measures how engaged 11s employees feel,
rather than how satisficd they are with their jobs In 2007/08, 71 per cent of the company’s people said they feit engaged and fully
supported the business The company’s ambition for 2008/09 15 to increase this score to 78 per cent through targeted action plans

The company has introduced consistent health and safety standards supported by improved checks and a greater safety awareness and
competence among its employees  This allows the company to focus on reducing and measuring nisk control rather than just dealing with
accidents n i1sotation This new approach to health and safety management will also ensure that all employees maintain the night
knowledge, skills and competence levels to work as safely as possible

We offer our employees a set of core benefits which range from holidays and pension schemes to health checks and family-friendly
benefits Pension provision 1s a valued core benefit and 90 5 per cent of employees are members of the group’s schemes some of which
offer an Additional Voluntary Contribution faciiity We recogmse the importance of work-hfe balance and have developed a range of
initiatives that go beyond our legal obiigations as an employer These include our pelicies on maternity, patermity, adoption, family,
personal and special leave We offer flexible working career breaks, part time working. job-share home working and a range of
additional benefits This year we extended the flexible benefits scheme to all our employees

Our business principles make 1t clear that i everything we do we act with integrity and faimess and observe legal requirements  Any
employee with sericus concerns that we may not be adhering to these principles 1s encouraged to speak up via their ling manager or by
using a voicemall number that can be called in confidence

The company 15 commitied to fulfitling 1ts obligations n accordance with the Disabihity Discrimunation Act 1995 and best practice  As
an equal opportunities employer, the company gives equal consideration to applicants with disabilities 1n its employment criteria and will
modify equipment and working practices wherever 1t 1s safe and practical to do so  The company 1s commutted to providing full support
and appropriate training for employees who become disabled during the course of their employment so that they can continue to work n
a posiion appropruate to their expenence and abilities

9
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Operating and financial review (continued)
RESOURCES (CONTINUED)

Operating facilities

As at 31 March 2008, the company had the principal operating facilities and offices shown 1n the table below, all of which are owned and
are freechold, except Sandon Dock which 1s leasehold

Principal operating facilities

Location Description Approximate area

n hectares
Bowland Estate, Lancashire Reservoir/gathering grounds 10120
Haweswater Estate, Cumbria Reservoir/gathering grounds 10,522
Longdendale Estate, Derbyshire Reservoir/gathering grounds 10,215
West Pennine Moors, Lancashire Reservoi/gathering grounds 5,564
Thirlmere Estate, Cumbnia Reservoir/gathening grounds 4,850
Davyhulme, Greater Manchester Wastewater treatment works 113
Huntington, Cheshire Water treatment works 107
Prescot, Merseyside Water treatment works 84
Woodgate Hill, Greater Manchester Water treatment works 40
Sandon Dock, Liverpool Wastewater treatment works 8
Shell Green, Widnes Sludge processing cenire 5

Note One hectarc equals 2 47 acres

Principal offices

Location Description Floor area in sq ft Uulisation
Lingley Mere Warrington Company offices 259,622 100%
Winsford Cheshire Company offices 20 441 70%

In addition to the properties described above, the company occuptes various non-operational properties consisting pnmarily of offices
depots, warchouses and workshops These are either owned or leased by the company 1t 1s anticipated that the company will be able to
negotiate renewals of any expiring leases, or relocate the relevant facilities without having a material adverse impact on the company

INTERNAL CONTROL

The company operates an internal control system to evaluate and manage rishs  The board 15 responsible for the company’s system of
mternal controls and for reviewing its effectiveness Each year management reviews all controls including financial, operational ard
comphance controls and nsh management procedures  The intemal control system 15 designed to manage, rather than to eliminate, the
nisk of failure to achieve the company's business objectives and can only provide reasonable, and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss

The hey features of the internal control system are

* a control environment with clearly defined orgamisation structures operating within a framework of policies and procedures covening
every aspect of the business,

» comprehensive business planning, nisk assessment and financial reporting procedures, including the annual preparation of detailed
operational budgets for the vear ahead and projecttons for subsequent years,

» established procedures, set out in an internal control manual for planning, approving and monitoring major capital expenditure, major
projects and the development of new business which includes short and long-term budgets, rish evaluation, detailed appraisal and
review procedures, defined authority levels and post-mvestment performance reviews,

» a monthly board review of financial and non-financial performance to assess progress towards objectives

+ centralised treasury operations operating within defined limits and subject to regular reporting requirements and internal audit reviews,

+ an 1nternal auchit function which provides independent scrutiny of internal control systems and risk management procedures,

« regular monutoring of nsks and control systems throughout the year, supported by the use of risks and 1ssues databases

+ a self-certification process whereby management 1s required to confirm annually that the system of internal control 1S operaung
effectively,

« an annual rnish assessment exercise involving self-assessment by management of all business risks in terms of impact, likelihood and the
strength of related intemal controls, and

« health and safety performance reviews camed out by the company’s in-house health and safety professionals in addition to the normal
health and safety nisk assessment and management processes carmed out within each of the operating businesses
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Operating and financial review (continued)
PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The company 15 exposed to a variety of risks and uncertainties which, if they matenalise could adversely affect the company’s
reputation  profitability or financial position, and the pricing and hquidity of the company’s securihies The pnincipal nsks and
uncertainties to which the company 1s exposed are summartsed below, but other nisks and uncertainties, or risks and uncertainties that are
unforeseen or unforesecable could also have an adverse impact on the company’s reputation, profitability or financial position, and the
prictng and hiquidity of the company’s securities

Regulation

The company operates in a regulated industry and 1ts water and wastewater businesses are substantially mfluenced by the service levels,
regulatory targets and price determinations made by its primary regulator, Ofwat, and Ofwat's assessment of 1ts delivery against those
service levels, regulatory targets and price determinations The most recent price determimation in 2004 set price limits for the five years
from Apnil 2005 The next price determination in 2009 wall take effect for five years from Apnil 2010

An adverse price determination could occur for a number of reasons, mcluding an nadequate allowed cost of capital or inadequate
assumptions by Ofwat concerning the company’s future operating and capital expenditure as well as turnover forecasts proving not to be
sufficiently accurate [n addition, unforeseen or unforeseeable costs may arise after a price determination which were not taken into
account by Ofwat n setting price limits and cannot be passed on to customers Scope for the company to review a particular price
determunation within the relevant five-year peniod 1s imited  These review mechanisms can also be mvoked by Ofwat to reduce the
prices the company can charge 1ts customers

Ofwat 1s empowered to impose fines on the company of up to 10 per cent of its regulated turnover 1f 1t fails to comply with 1ts regulatory
obligations Furthermore 1if the company provided a sub-standard service 1o customers or failed to comply with reporting requirements
then n serious cases the company s licences could be revoked The company engages regularly with Ofwat and us other regulators
within the applicable statutory framework, and endeavours to ensurc that the assumptions and projections underlying Ofwat’s price
determinations are accurate and achievable

Operational performance and cost savings impheit in price determinations

Operating cost savings are implicit in Ofwat’s price determinations To assist the achievement of these operating cost savings, the
company has introduced a business change programme [f these efficiencies are not achieved, this may adversely affect the company s
profitability and may be reflected by less favourable outcomes in Ofwat’s future price determinations

Events, service interruptions, water shortages or contamination of water supphes could adversely affect profitability

The company contrels and operates water and wastewater networks and maintains the associated assets with the objective of providing a
continuous service  In exceptronal circumstances the failure of an asset, or an element of a network or supporting plant or equipment
could result in catastrophic damage, including sigmificant loss of life and/or environmental damage and/or economic and social
disruption  In less exceptional circumstances the failure of a key asset could cause a significant interruption to the supply of services
Although the company has continued to refine 1ts risk management and business continuity procedures it 1s only possible te be
reasenably, but not absolutely, certain that such measures will be effective in preventing or when necessary managing large-scale
incidents to the satisfaction of customers, regulators government and the wider staheholder community

The company has a duty to supply water that 15 wholesome at the time of supply {he Drinking Water Inspectorate 15 required to take
enforcement action against the company for any breach of quality standards or other statutory obliganons In addition, the company may
be prosecuted and fined or face claims from third parties for supplying water that 1s unfit for human consumption

Water supplies may be subject to interruption or contamunation, including contamination from the presence of naturally occurring
compounds and pollution from man-made sources or third parties’ actions The company could be fined for breaches of statutory
obligations or held hable to third parties for human exposure to hazardous substances in 1ts water supplies or other environmental
damage If a water supply provided by the company is contaminated or interrupted and the company 1s unable to substitute water supply
from an uncontaminated water source, or to treat adequately the contaminated water source, the company 15 required to provide an
alternative water supply of equivalent quality, which could 1increase costs

Water shortages may be caused by penods of below average rainfall, long-term increases in demand short-term exceptional demand or
operational problems involving water abstraction, transmission treatment, storage or distnibution  Environmental considerations such as
chimate change may exacerbate seasonal fluctuations i supply availability A combmation of any or all of these factors may require
restrictions on the use of water, including hosepipe bans and drought orders  If there are water shortages the company may incur
additional cosis in order to provide emergency reinforcement to supplies 1n areas of shortage which may have an adverse effect on the
company’s profitability or financial position

Although these cosis may be recoverable in part through the regulatory price detcrminauocn process there can be no assurance of this
The company actively monitors these rishs and maintains insurance policies in relation to losses and liabihies hikely to be associated
with these nisks, although there can be no assurance that cover will extend to the entirety of such losses or liabilities or that coverage will
continue to be available in the future
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United Utilities Water PLC

Operating and financial review (continued)
PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (CONTINUED)
Capital investment programmes

The company requires sigmficant capatal expenditure particuiarly in relation to new and replacement plant and equipment for water and
wastewater networks and treatment facilittes  The price determinations made by Ofwat take 1nto account the level of capital expenditure
that Ofwat expecis the company to incur during the relevant five-year price review pertod and the associated funding costs

Historically, the company has financed this capital expenditure from operating cash flows and from external debt financing There can
be no assurance that operating cash flows will not dechine or that, in the longer term, external debt financing or other sources of capital
will be available at similar expense 1n order to meet these capital expenditure requircments

If the company 15 unable to deliver on its capital expenditure programmes, adverse legacy effects of earlier capital imvestment emerge or
amounts budgeted 1n prior capital expenditure programmes prove insufficient to meet the actual capital expenditure required, the
company’s profitability or financial position may be adversely affected In addition, the company’s ability to meet regulatory and other
environmental performance standards could be adversely affected by such failure, which may resull in fines imposed by Ofwat of an
amount of up to 10 per cent of regulated turnover, or other sanctions

At the beginning of the 2005-10 price determination period there had been around 3,000 intermittent discharges recorded 1n north west
England from wastewater overflows, of which a number were determined by the Environment Agency as unsausfactory (UIDs) There
have been ongoing discussions between the company, Ofwat and the Environment Agency regarding the responsibility, scope and cost of
the required solutions for a number of these UIDs  The majority of these UID projects were not part of the 2005-10 regulatory contract
and will require addrtional investment

In October 2007 the company submitted a funding submission, or change protocol, to Ofwat relating to discharges into nland waters
This submission followed a planning inquiry which dealt withta small number of such UlDs but which was tntended to establish
precedent for a larger number of similar discharges that were under discussion  I'he required investment at the sites included in the
change protocol submisston has now been endorsed by Defra A further planning inqury dealing with discharges to bathing waters was
heard 1n December 2007 The company will be making further submissions to Ofwat dealing with those UIDs affected by that planning
inguiry as well as other UIDs

Taken together, the company currently estimates that funding for capital expenditure of approxunately £700 million 1s likely to be
required in order to remedy these UIDs A large proportion of this capital expenditure 1s Likely to fall into the 2010-15 regulatory period
and so the funding of this investment wiil be considered as part of the forthcoming 2009 price review  This investment programme, tf
fully endorsed by Defra and Ofwat, should be funded through price limits and deliver additional growth in the company’s regulatory
capital values as well as benefits for customers and the environment The company cannot be certain, however, that all these additional
costs will be recoverable on this basis and will not adversely affect the company’s profitability or financial position

Non-recovery of customer debt

The company manages the billing, cash collection and debt management activities for over three muilion domestic and business
wastewater and water customers Legislation prohibits the disconnection of a water supply 1o domestic premises for non-payment, as
well as the hmting of a supply with the intention of enforcing payment n respect of certan connections ncluding those to domestic
dweihings

Non-recovery of customer debt may cause the company’s profitabihty to suffer Although allowance 1s made by Ofwat in its pertodic
price determinations for a proportion of debt deemed 10 be irrecoverable, the company can also mmtiate a review during a price
determenation period when certain regulatory assumptions (Including as to the level of non-recoverable debt) are matenally naccurate,
although there can be no guarantee that these reviews will be successful




United Utilities Water PLC

Operating and financial review (continued)
PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (CONTINUED)
Environmental laws

There are various environmental laws with which the company must comply These laws establish amongst other things, standards for
water abstraction drinking water the discharge of sewage and other pollutants into the environment, and procedures governing
operational development The company 1s required to obtain various environmental consents from regulators

In particular, the company s required to comply with laws intended to control the release of, or exposure 1o, contaminants that are
potentially harmfut to health, safety or the environment  Land that 15 designated as contaminated land may need to be remediated, and
the company could be hable for the cost of remediation of land owned or occupied by it 1f the onginal poltuter cannot pay The company
owns a significant number of sites and operates upon or within land owned, tenanted or trafficked by third partics

None of the company’s {and 1s currently designated as contaminated but it owns or 1s required to work within or may i future own or be
required to work within, sites that, by virtue of prior use, are potentially contaminated Whilst the company has implemented risk
controls intended to effect compliance, 1t 1s possible that there may be hability in relation to contamimated land in future and the company
could face sanctions imposed by the relevant regulator or the courts or claims by third parties

While the company endeavours to comply with all legal requirements, it cannot guaranice that n the future it will be in full comphance
at all imes with all applicable environmental laws and the terms and conditions n 1ts environmental consents  Should 1t fail to comply,
the company could face fines imposed by the courts or otherwise face sanction by the relevant regulator or clarms from third parties and
additional costs to bring the company into compliance

In addition to regulatory compliance proceedings, the company could become involved in a range of third party legal proceedings
relating to land use environmentat protection and water quality which could mclude planming permussion applications for, for example,
sewagc treatment or water treatment works, challenges by third parties to decistons relating to the company that have been made by
regulators and civil actions by third parties for the alleged infringement of their common law rights such as nuisance claims relating to
odour or other matters These nisks could adversely affect the way that the company operates, prejudice 1ts reputation and result in the
imposition of substanual fines, damages and other costs, each of which could adversely affect profitability and the company’s financial
position

The Water Act 2003 (the act’) has implemented changes to the regulatory regime The scope and uming of the government’s plans
under the act to transfer ownership of parts of the scwerage system which are 1n private ownership to sewerage undertakers have yet to be
finalised and the company may ncur costs as a result of such a transfer, for example 1n meeting the costs of any upgrading and
maintenance work that may need to be carrted out 1n respect of the transferred sewers  Further the act has introduced new time-limited
water abstraction hicences which must be renewed upon expiry The renewal of these licences 1s now subject to certain tests and the
company’s abstraction licences may not be renewed Additionat costs could be incurred in implementing replacement projects

Pension scheme obhigations

The company participates in a number of United Utihities group pension schemes The principal schemes are funded defined benefit
schemes and the assets of the schemes are held 1n trust funds independent of company finances In respect of the company, the current
schemes had a combined deficit of £48 6 million as at 31 March 2008 compared with a surplus of £11 8 mullion as at 31 March 2007
(see note 21) Ihis funding position may vary over time, 1n particular if short-term mvestment performance does not match changes to
the value of the habilities

However, further mcreases to the deficit may result in a habiity for the company even though some of the addimonal deficit may be
recoverable through the regulatory price determmation process
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United Utilities Water PLC

Operating and financial review (continued)
LONG TERM STRATEGY, BUSINESS OBJECTIVES AND PERFORMANCE

The company’s viston 15 to be a world class owner and operater of utility infrastructure  The company 1s targeting an upper quartile
position on key operatonal and service measures in the medium-term whilst simultancously outperforming financrally its regulatory
contract (effective Apri 2005) pursuant to which the company operates the water and wastewater networks

Operational performance

The company’s strategy 1s built upon the key enabler of a high performance culture and the achievement of a long term sustamnable
operating model  Building on the progress that has been made in the last two years, this requires significant transforrmational change of
the business over the next two years in the way 1t will enhance expenditure planning and manage 1ts assets and workforce  The company
has wdentificd a number of Key Performance Indicatars (KP1s) against which it would assess 1ts performance

Operational KPI Target Performance update
Relative efficiency to be upper quartile in the The company has closed the operational efficiency gap to the most
mediume-term efficient water companies over the last two years For the water

service the company has narrowed the gap from 16 per cent to 12 per
cent and for the wastewater service from 27 per cent 1o 18 per cent
(based on the company’s intemal e¢stimates) This is reflected in
Ofwat’s 2006/07 assessment as band B for the water service and band
C for the wastewater service and represents a one band improvement
for both services over the two-year period

Security of water supply to meet or outperform relhing The company outperformed the tougher economic level of leakage
(leakage) leahage targets and avoid the need  rolling target of 465 megalitres per day as set by Ofwat for 2007/08
for water restrictions This 1s the second consecutive year that the company has met or
outperformed s leakage target In addition there were no water
’ restrictions on customers during the year
Pollution to reduce incidents by at least 50  One water and eight wastewater Category 1&2 incidents were recorded
per cent 1n the medium-term in 2007 compared with the base position of two water and 21
wastewater incidents in 2005  The company again outperformed 1ts
target of a 50 per cent reduction in the medium-term

Sewer flooding to reduce tncidents by at least 30 The company continued to remove properties from i1ts sewer flooding
per cent in the medium-term regester - A medium-term target of reducing the number of properties

on this register by 50 per cent compared with a start point of 641

properties 1n 2005/06 has been set  This target 1s based on properties at

nisk of expeniencing at least one sewer flooding incident 1n ten years

Further progress has been made in 2007/08 with 434 properties now on

the register Thuis represents a 32 per cent reduction over the last two

years and the business remains on track to meet 1ts medium-term target

Overall customer 85 per cent in the medium-term Good progress was made in 2007/08 and 73 per cent of the company’s

satisfaction customers surveyed who had made an enquiry were satisfied with the
overall service they received  This compares with a start point
satisfaction level of less than 50 per cent 1 2005  These satisfaction
levels are based on a comprehensive independent survey conducted on
behalf of the company each month Going forward the business has a
strong focus on resolving customer queries on the first contact which
should improve customer satisfaction and lower the cost of service

The company has a vision 16 be 2 world class operator of utility infrastructure and 15 targeting an upper quartile posiion among UK
water companies on key operational measures n the medium-term  The business continues to upgrade its infrastruciure and replaced 630
kilometres of water mains during 2007/08 (2006/07 810 kilometres) The company supplies a high qualtty of drinking water, with a
mean sonal comphance water quality performance of 99 94 per cent for the year (2006/07 99 92 per cent) The company was ranked
first among the UK’s water and sewerage compames n 2006/07 by Ofwat for both water and sewerage mn 11s most recent asset
serviceabihity assessment reflecting the company s long-term stewardship of 1ts asscts

Alihough the company has delivered real progress there 1s more 10 do 1n improving operational performance  Duning 2007/08 there was
a hugher level of sewer flooding incidents influenced by adverse weather conditions This together with environmental underperformance
at the company’s Fleetwood wastewater treatment works will lead to a lower Overall Performance Assessment (OPA) score from Ofwat
for 2007/08 compared with the prior year
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United Utilities Water PLC

Operating and financial review (continued)
LONG TERM STRATEGY, BUSINESS OBJECTIVES AND PERFORMANCE (CONTINUED)
Performance

Ihe company monitors a large number of financial and non-financial KPIs, including targets set by Ofwat  Performance in 2007/08
against these measures 15 set out m the table below, together with the prior year performance data

Performance against KPls

2007/08 2006/07
Financial
Turnover £1,426 4m £1,318 2m
Operating profit £651 Im £568 Tm
Profit before tax £457 5m £431 Om
RCV gearing ¥ 53% 49%
Interest cover & 29 26
Capital expenditure (net cash flow) £7213m £537 Tm
Environment
Pollution mcidents @ 9 9
Water quality - mean zonal compliance ¥ 99 94% 99 92%
Greenhouse gas enussions ‘@ 0 512mtCO4(e) 0 489mtCO4(e)
Renewable energy generated 93 3GWh 78 6GWh
Employees
Employee engagement — employee opinion survey 71% nfa
Customers
Water - relative efficiency banding ¥ Band B*2%0607 Band B200306)
Wastewater - relative efficiency banding ® Band 0% Band C2%%%9
Leahage - rothng annual average leahage'™ 462Ml/day 468M\l/day
Sewer flooding - number of properties on the at-risk register % 434 469
Overall customer satisfaction — water (in response to enquines) 73% 68%
Overall Performance Assessment (OPA) 1V 343 points 385 ponts

" Tumover 1s the consideration receivable by the company for services provided during the year

W RCV gearing 1s measured as borrowings net of cash and short-term depostts divided by the Regulatory Capnal Value (RCV)  The RCV s a company-
specific measure calculated by Ofwat. which 15 widely used 1n the investment commumty as a component of the market value of regulated water
businesses

 Interest cover 15 the number of times the net underlying finance expense 1s covered by operaung profit before exceptional charges  Net underiying
interest expense 15 calculated as the underlying cost of borrowings excluding any pension adjustment and movements in the far value of debt and
denivatives but including the £41 8 milhion (2006/07 £352 9 mullion) interest on swaps and debt under fair value option

“ Number of category One and Two mcidents during the year as defined by the Environment Agency Figures stated are for the years to 31 December
2007 and 2006

" Mean zonal compliance 15 used as an indicator of the overall quality of water as measured at the consumer’s tap 1t 1s constituted from data for 40
parameters with National or European standards Figures stated are for the years to 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006

“ Incorporates the increase 1n Defra s carbon dioxide emussion factor  Note mtCOs(e) represents multon tonnes of CO, emissions (or their equivalent)’
' This 15 a new measure designed to provide a more in-depth analysis than employee satisfaction as discussed on page 9

* Relatve efficiency 1s the operating expenditure retative efficiency band as assessed by Ofwat for the years to 31 March 2007 and 31 March 2006

® Annual rolling average leahage — figures given are m megalitres per day for the years to 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006 The Ofwat
Regulatory rolling average leakage target was 465 megabitres per day

9 The regsster records properties at rish of experiencing one sewer flooding incident in ten years

U As the Overall Performance Assessment (OPA) at March 2008 has not been confirmed by Ofwat this represents the company’s current best estimate
The OPA 15 a measure used by Ofwat to compare the quality of the overall service that water compames provide to their customers across a bashet of
measures The figure now quoted for 2006/07 15 the actual assessment




United Utilities Water PLC

Operating and financial review (continued)
LONG TERM STRATEGY, BUSINESS OBJECTIVES AND PERFORMANCE (CONTINUED)
Finanaal performance

Turnover ncreased by 8 2 per cent to £1,426 4 muitlion 1n 2007/08, principally as a result of allowed price increases of 4 4 per cent plus
RPI of 3 9 per cent. offset to a small extent by lower water consumption and trade effluent volumes and the retrospective claims by
unmetered customers  The increase 1n price supports the mvestment of significant sums in improving the infrastructure which provides
vital clean water and wastewaler services 10 customers

Operating profit increased by 14 5 per cent 10 £651 1 million 1n 2007/08, pnmarily reflecting the allowed price increase, partly offset by
higher depreciation expense as a consequence of increased capiial spend and increased doubtful debt charges, due to the embedding of
new service provider arrangements and increasingly challenging economic conditions affecting the propensity to pay

Net interest payable for the year increased by 40 6 per cent to £193 6 million in 2007/08 Thus increase 1s the result of higher borrowings
during the year and a fair value loss of £19 & million on debt and derrvative instruments (2006/07 £22 4 milhon gain) Thts velatility 1n
the fair value reflects the fact that 1n order to hedge the interest cost implicit in the regulatory contracts, the company fixes interest rates
far the duration of each five-year review period for the majonity of 1ts debt using interest rate swaps  Financial Réporting Standard
(FRS) 26 'Financsal Instruments Recognition and Measurement' hmits the use of hedge accounting for these commercial hedges, thereby
mcreasing the potential volatility 1n the profit and loss account In addition the impact of changes in credit spread on debt accounted for
at fair value through profit or loss can result in significant additional volatility  However, this volatility has no cash flow tmpact  Interest
payable on swaps and debt under the fair value option was £31 9 mullion (2006/07 £53 5 million)

The current UK mawnstream corporation tax charge for 2007/08 reflects the high level of accelerated tax allowances ansing from the
capital investment undertaken by the company The effective current tax charge 1s 21 0 per cent, compared with a charge of 17 6 per cent
in 2006/07 Including deferred tax, there 15 an effective tax charge of 20 3 per cent, compared with 22 6 per cent in 2006/07

Net cash generated from operating activities increased 10 £963 7 mullion, from £867 5 million in 2006/07 A signtficant level of capital
investment continues to be made and reflects the peak phase of the 2005-10 water and wastewater capital investment programme The
2007/08 net capital investment spend of £721 3 million represents a 34 1 per cent increase over 2006/07 reflecting the planned rephasing
of the AMP4 capual programme

Short-term deposits of £1,307 0 million were drawn down 1n the year, being utilised through the increased capital spend and the set up of
a new mter-company loan structure of £497 5 milhon Borrowings, net of cash and short-term deposits, increased by £532 3 mullion to
£3 906 8 mullion at 31 March 2008 RCV gearing measured as borrowings net of cash and short-term deposits divided by the regulatory
capual value, increased to 52 9 per cent compared with 49 0 per cent at 31 March 2007

In the 2007/08 financial year, dividends of £299 3 mulhon were recogmsed This figure represents a dividend payment relating to the
financial year 2006/07 of £196 3 million and an interim payment relating to 2007/08 of £103 0 rilhon  The board has recommended a
final ordinary dividend for 2007/08 of £220 0 million as well as a special dividend of £550 0 million (see capital structure section on

page 17)
Regulatory accounts measures
Atypreal operating expenditure items

Atypical costs 1n the year included customer transition costs of £5 6 million, which represent consultancy costs associated with the
Customer Transformation Programme The Transformation Programme 15 designed to dehver tools and techniques, improved processes
and performance management into the customer services operaiton to enable a substantial improvement in productivity and performance

Also included 1s £2 0 million 1n respect of Huyton incident costs related to the insurance excess paid to cover two separate bursts along
Liverpool Road and restructuring costs specifically around the support service reorgamsation of £4 5 million  The restructuring costs of
£4 5 milhon have been treated as exceptional charges in the statutory and regulatory accounts There 1s been no atypical income 1n the
current vear (2006/07 £4 9 million)

Significant movements in Infrastructure Renewals Charge and Current Cost Depreciation

The annual regulatory accounts’ infrastructure renewals charge continues to be based on the current five-year business plan plus the ten
year (2010 to 2020) annual expenditure projections submitted at the 2004 price review (PR04) The 2007/08 charge 1s £117 4 milhon,
compared to £113 0 mullion in 2006/07 The current cost depreciation charge attributable to the company (net of amortisation of deferred
grants) for the year of £305 6 million compares with the Final Determmation assumption of £327 7 mullion  This reduction of £22 1
mtllion 15 due largely to lower capital expenditure 1n this and the previous two years, and the impact of the company’s PR04 asset
revaluation

Donations to charttable trusts assisting customers or similar funds

Duning the year, the company has made donations of £3 0 million to the United Utilities Trust Fund an independent chanitable trust
helping customers 1n genuine financial difficulty with both water and non-water debts and in addition providing monies to third parties to
promote money advice work  This 15 tn hine with the agreed donation profile and has been expensed via the profit and loss account
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Operating and financial review (continued)

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
Overview

The board has reviewed the business plan and considers that the company has sufficient liquidity 10 meet 1ts anticipated financial
commtments for at least the next twelve months '

The company’s pnimary source of iquidity 1s cash generated from its ongoing business operations  As reflected in the cash flow
statement on page 26 n the year ended 31 March 2008, net cash generated from the company’s operating activities was £963 7 million,
compared with £867 5 million 1n 2006/07 The water regulator has established price mcrease hmits to 2010, which will provide certainty
for the majority of the company s turnover

Credit ratings

Durning the year, the company announced that the board intends to target an tnvestment grade credit rating of A3 for the cormpany, which
1t believes best mirrors regulatory assumptions At the year end the company had stable long-term credit ratings of A3 and A- from
Moody’s Investors Service and Standard and Poor’s Ratings Services respectively

Dividend pohey

The board reviewed the capital structure and dividend policy of the company 1n November 2007 when 1t approved in principle a one-off
return of capital of £550 0 milhon as a special dividend  As a result of this special distribution, there will be a 30 per cent reduction in
the 2008/09 dividend payment when compared to the 2007/08 dividend The board expects the special dividend and revised dividend
policy to increase the company’s gearing level of net debt to regulatory capital value 1o the upper end of the Ofwat range {55 to 65 per
cent for the 2005-10 price control period) and to enable 1t to maintain a sustainable capital structure consistent with the board’s target
credit rating of A3

Liqudity

Short-term Iiquidity requirements are met from the company’s normal operating cash flow and movements in short-term bank deposits
Further hquidity 1s provided by commatted but undrawn credit faciliies  This ligmdity supports the United Utilities PLC group’s US$1 5
bilhon euro-commercial paper programme The European Investment bank 1s currently appraising a new £400 million term loan to the
company The company also has access to the international debt capital markets through the United Utilities PLC group’s €7 billion
medium-term note programme, which provides for the periodic issuance of debt instruments on terms and conditions determined at the
time that the instruments are :ssued The programme does not represent a funding commitment, as funding 15 dependent on the
successful 1ssue of the debt securities  The currencies in which borrowings are held are disclosed 1n note 19 to the financial statements

Debt financing and interest rate management

Long-term borrowings are structured or hedged to match earnings and assets which are largely in sterhing, indexed o UK retail price
inflation and, n the case of revenues subject to regulatory price reviews every five years

Very long-term sterling inflation index-linked debt 1s the company’s preferred form of funding as this provides a natural hedge to
carmings and assets At the year end, the company had in excess of £1 5 billion of such funding, representing approximately 21 per cent
of the regulatory capital value of the company, with an average real interest rate of 1 8 per cent  The long-term nature of this funding
also provides a good match to the company’s long-life infrastructure assets and 1s a key contributor to the company s average term debt
maturity profile, which 15 1n excess of 34 years

Where debt 15 raised 1n a currency other than sterling and/or with a fixed interest rate nt 1s generally swapped to create a floatng rate
sterhng lhiability for the term of the hablity

The company’s interest rale management policy 1s to seek to match the debt service costs to regulatory cash flow which 1s impacted by
the gencral 1nterest rate environment at the time of each price determination and 1s then fixed for the five-year pertod of that price
control  [o hedge the exposure to each price control determinauon, the company enters into interest rate swaps around the ume of each
price control determination, to fix interest costs for a substantial proportion of the company’s debt for the duration of that price control
peniod  Residual interest rate exposure s hedged annually, largely through the use of exchange traded financial futures contracts

Further details of the company’s borrowings and interest rale management are provided in notes 7, 19 and 20
Treasury policy
The company’s treasury function operates within the policies approved by the Unned Uulines PLC board These policies are

admumstered by the treasury commuttee through delegated authonty from the board, 1t does not act as a profit centre and does not
undertake any speculative trading activity
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Operating and financial review (continued)

ACCOUNTING ISSUES

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2008 have been prepared under the histoncal cost convention and in accordance
with apphcable UK accounting standards and except for the treatment of certain grants and coatrnbutions (note 1 (), with the
Companies Act 1985

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The company prepares 1its statutory financial statements wn accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 1n the UK (UK
GAAP) As such, the company 1s required to make certain estimates, jJudgements and assumptions that 1t believes are reasonable based
upon the information available These estimates and assumptions affect the reporied amounts of assets and lrabihities at the date of the
financial statements and the amounts of tumnover and expenses during the reporting peniods presented  On an ongomg basis, the
company evaluates 11s estimates using historical expenence, consultation with experts and other metheds considered reasonable m the
particular circumstances  Actual results may differ significantly from the estimates, the effect of which 1s recognised n the penod 1in
which the facts that give rise to the revision become known The company’s accounting policies are detailed 1n note 1 of the financial
statements The following paragraphs detail the estimates and judgements the company believes to have the most significant impact on
the annual results under UK GAAP

Carrying value of long-hved assets

The estimated useful economic lives of fixed asscts are based on management’s judgement and experience ' When management identifies
that actual useful lives differ matenally from the estimates used to calculate depreciation that charge 1s adjusted prospectively Due (o
the significance of fised asset investment to the company vanations between actual and estimated useful hives could impact operating
results both positively and negatively, although historically few changes to estimated useful lives have been required

The company 1s required to evaluate the carrying values of fixed assets for impairment whenever circumstances indicate. n
management’s judgement, that the carrying value of such assets may not be recoverable An impairment review requires management to
make subjective Judgements concerning the cash flows growth rates and discount rates of the cash generating units under review

Renewals accounting

Under UK GAAP the depreciation charge for infrastructure assets 1s the estimated level of annual expenditure required to maintain the
operating capability of the network. which 1s based on the company’s asset management plan, which has been certified by Halcrow
Management Sciences Limited, an independent infrastructure management consultant approved by Ofwat  Vanations between actual
infrastructure spend and estimated spend are included in the balance sheet, with the principle being to equahse’ the effect of annual
spend variations on the charge to the profit and loss account Therefore, the independently certified asset management plan has an
impact on the company’s operating profit and changes 1n the plan assumptions could give nise 10 a different operating profit These
assumptions include judgements relating to the condition and performance of infrastructure assets

Revenue recogmition

Under UK GAAP the company recognises revenue generally at the time of dehvery and when collection of the resulting debt 1s
reasonably assured Should management consider that the cniteria for revenue recognition are not met for a transaction revenue
recognitton would be delayed unul such time as the transaction becomes fully earned or collectibility 1s reasonably assured Payments
recetved 1n advance of revenue recognition are recorded as deferred revenue

The company raises bills and recogmises revenue in accordance with its entitlement to receive revenue in hine with the hints established
by the periodic regulatory price review process

For water and wastewater customers with water meters, the debtor billed 1s dependent upon the volume supphed including an estimate of
the sales value of units suppled between the date of the last meter reading and the year end Meters are read on a cyclical basis and the
company recogmses revenue for unbilled amounts based on estimated usage from the last billing through to the end of the financial year

The estimated usage 1s based on histonic data, judgement and assumptions, actual results could differ from these estimates which would
result 1n operating revenues being adjusted in the period that the revision to the estimates ts determined  For customers who do not have
a meter, the debtor billed i1s dependent upon the rateable value of the property, as assessed by an independent rating officer

Provisien for doubtful debts
At each balance sheet date, the company evaluates the recoverability of trade debtors and records provisions for doubtful debts based on
experience These provisions are based on amongst other things customer category and consideration of actual collection history  The

actual level of debt collected may differ from the esumated levels of recovery which could impact operating results posiuvely or
negatively
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Operating and financial review (continued)
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Accounting for provisions and contingencies

The company 1s subject to a number of claims incidental to the normal conduct of 1ts business, relating to and including commercial,
contractual and employment matters, which are handled and defended mn the ordmary course of business The company rouvtinely
assesses the lihelihood of any adverse judgements or outcomes to these matters as well as ranges of probable and reasonably esumated
losses

Reasonable estirnates involve judgements made by management after considering informatton wcluding notifications settlements and
estimates performed by independent parties and legal counsel available facts 1dentfication of other potentially responsible parties and
their ability to contribute, and prior experience In accordance with UK GAAP, a provision 1s recogmsed when 1t 1s probable that an
obligation exists for which a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation afler careful analysis of the individual matter

The required provision may change in the future due to new developments and as additional information becomes available  Matters that
enther are possible obhgations or do not meet the recognition criteria for a provision are disclosed, unless the possibility of transferring
economc benefits 15 remote

Pensions

The company participates in two defined benefit schemes, one of which has a defined contnbution section, which are independent of the
company’s finances Actuarial valuations of the schemes are carried out as determined by the trustees at intervals of not more than three
years Under UK GAAP, the pension cost under FRS 17 'Retsrement benefiis’ 15 assessed 1n accordance with the advice of a firm of
actuanes based on the latest actuarial valuation and assumptions deternmuned by the actuary

The assumptions are based on information supplied to the actuary by the company, supplemented by discussions between the actuary and
management The assumptions are disclosed in note 21 of the financial statements  Profit before taxation and net assets are affected by
the actuanial assumptions used These assumptions include investment returns on the schemes” assets discount rates, pay growth and
imcreases to penstons i payment and deferred pensions and may differ from actual results due to changing market and economic
conditions and longer or shorter lives of participants

Perivatives and borrowings

The company's default treatment 15 for borrowings to be carried at amortised cost whilst dernivatives are recognised separately on the
balance sheet at fair value with movements in those fair values reflected through the profit and loss account  This has the potential 1o
introduce considerable volatility to both the profit and loss account and balance sheet

Therefore, where feasible the company has taken advantage of the various provisions under FRS 26 'Financial Instruments Recognition
and Measurement' to designate borrowings at fair value through the profit and loss account to reduce this volatllity and better represent
the economic hedges that exist between the company’s borrowings and related denivative contracts

In order to apply hedge accounting, 1t must be demonstrated that the derivauve has been and will continue to be an effecuve hedge of
the hedged rish within the debt item  Changes in the fair value of all denivatives are recognised 1n the profit and loss account excepl for
denivatives that are designated and effective in terms of cash flow hedging relauonships 1n which case the gains and losses are deferred
In equity

The company applies the fair value through profit or loss option where the complexity of the swaps means that they are disaliowed from
being accounted for 1n a hedge relatonship despite there being significant fair value offset between the hedged iem and the derivatve
uself This area 15 considered to be of sigmficance due to the magnitude of the company s level of borrowings

Designated borrowings and derivatives valued at fair value are valued using a discounted cash flow valuation model This model
calculates the zero ceupon curves for each currency as at the balance sheet date and uses these to determine future floating cash flows
Future fixed and floating cash flows are discounted using discount factors denived from the same zero coupon curves

The valuation of debt designated at fair value through the profit or loss incorporates an assumed credit spread n the discount factor
Credit spreads are deterrmined based on indicative pricing data

Cash flows denominated 1 foreign currencies are determined and discounted back based upon the zero coupon curve for that currency
and then converted into sterling at the spot exchange rate observed at the balance sheet date
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Operating and financial review (continued)
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Deferred tax

The company accounts for deferred tax on a discounted basis, as perrutted by UK GAAP  The deferred tax provision under UK GAAP
as at 31 March 2008 1s £358 2 milhion (2006/07 £358 3 million) The balance sheet provision 1s discounted using the rates of interest at
the balance sheet date on UK gilts with similar maturity dates and currencies to those of the deferred tax assets and habilities Therefore,
the company uses 15+ years UK gult rate to reflect the long-hife nature of infrastructure and operational assets An increase or decrease 1n
applicable discount rates of 0 t per cent would change the balance sheet provision at 31 March 2008 by approximately £9 0 million and
the tax charge, for the year then ended, by the same amount

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The company undertakes research primarily to provide improved standards of service to customers, together with continuing
tmprovements in business efficiency Its intention 15 to strengthen its understanding of science and technology in relation to 1ts range of
wastewater and water treatment processes to ensure that treatment plants are able to meet the required current and future standards of
environmental performance

The company 1s a2 member of a number of collaborative research programmes tncluding UK Water Industry Research and Water
Research Centre, both of which address common 1ssues that face the UK water industry  The company also undertakes specific projects
with these and other research and development providers, manufacturers and with universities  Research and development expendiiure
by the company was £1 0 million 1n the year ended 31 March 2008 (2006/07 £1 0 million)

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

The directors have recommended a final ordinary dividend for 2007/08 of £220 0 rmillion and a special dividend of £550 0 mullion,
subject to parent company financing bemng available There were no other events ansing afier the balance sheet date that require
recogmtion or disclosure 1n the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2008

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report contains certain statements with respect to the financial condition, results of operations and business of the company Some
of these statements are not facts, including those about the board’s beliefs and expectations Words such as ‘expects’, ‘anticipates’,
“intends”, “plans’, beheves’, “secks’, ‘esimates’, potenbal’, ‘reasonably possible’, ‘targets’ and vanabons of these words and similar
expressions reflect inherent nsks and uncertainty  Such statements are based on current plans, estimates and projections, and therefore
investors should not rely on them  Further, the company undertakes no obligation 1o update publicly any of them i hght of new
information or future events and they are relevant only as at the date made

The company cautions investors that a number of important factors could cause actual results to differ matenially from those anticipated
or implied tn any forward-looking statements These factors include (1) the effect of, and changes 1n, regulation and government policy,
(11) the effects of competition and price pressures, (1) the ability of the company to achieve cost savings and operational synergies, (iv)
the ability of the company to service 1ts future operations and capital requirements, {v) the timely development and acceptance of new
products and services by the company, (v1) the effect of technological changes, and (vis) the company’s success in managtng the risks of
the foregomg  The company cautions that the foregomng hst of important factors does not address all the factors that could cause results
to differ matenally

The directors of the company advise that all the imformation supplied in the managing director’s statement beginnung on page 3 and the
operating and financial review on pages 5 to 20 1s part of the directors’ report as incorporated by reference under the heading ‘Business
review and principal activities’  Any hability for the information 15 restricted to the extent prescribed n the Compamies Act 2006
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Directors’ report
for the year ended 31 March 2008

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements
of the company for the year ended 31 March 2008

Profit and dividends

The results for the year set out in the profit and loss account on page
24 show that tumover for the year ended 31 March 2008 increased
to £1,426 4 million, an increase of 8 2 per cent over the previous
year  Profit for the year before tax was £457 5 million (2006/07
£431 0 miilion)

Drividends are only recogmsed in the financial statements if they are
declared and approved in that financial year Dividends declared
after the balance sheet date are not recognised as a hability at the
balance sheet date This has resulted in the final ordinary dividend
for the year to 31 March 2007 of £196 3 million, which was declared
after 31 March 2007, being recognised 1n the current year financial
statements

An interim ordmary dividend of £103 0 muhion (2006/07 £92 1
million) was pad wn February 2008 The directors have
recommended a final ordinary dividend of £220 million (2006/07
£196 3 million) and a special dividend of £550 mullion (2006/07
f£ml} The purpose of this special dividend 1s to enable the company
to retain a credut ratng of A3, which the company believes best
mirrors Ofwat s assumptions (n relation to capital structure

Regulation

As required by paragraph 3 1 of Condition K of the Instrument of
Appointment granted by the Secretary of State for the Environment
of the company as a water and scwerage undertaker under the Water
Industry Act 1991 ( the Licence ), the directors state that they arc
satisfied that as at 31 March 2008, f a special administration order
had been made under section 23 of the Water Industry Act 1991 1n
respect of Umited Utthties Water PLC, the company would have had
available to at sufficient nights and assets (not including financial
resources) to have enabled the special administrator to manage the
affawrs, business and properties of the company so that the purpose of
the order could have been achieved

The directors have 1ssued a certificate under Condition F6A of the
Licence stating that the company will have available 10 1t sufficient
financial and management resources and facilines to enable 1t to
carry out, for at least twelve months, tts regulated activities This
certificate also confirms that all contracts entered into with any
associated company 1ncluded all necessary provision and
requirements concermng the standard of service to be supplied by
the company to ensure that 1t 1 able to meet all its obligations as a
water and sewerage undertaker

Ihe contract of appointment with the auditors satisfies the
requirements of paragraph 9 2 of Condition F of the Licence, namely
that "the auditors will provide such further explanation or
clanfication of their reports, and such further information 1n respect
of the matters which are the subject of their reports, as the Director
General may reasonably require”
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Business review and principal activities

The company 15 a wholly owned subsidiary of Umited Utilities PLC
and the company’s principal activities are the management and
operation of water and wastewater assets

The Managing Director’s statement and the Operating and Financial
Review on pages 3 to 20 report on the company’s activities during
the year and on likely future developments A summary of KPis can
be found in the operating and financial review

The directors of Umted Uulites Water PLC advise that all the
information supplied in the Managing Director’s statement beginning
on page 3 and the operating and financial review on pages 5 to 20 13
part of the directors’ report asincorporated by reference  Any
hability for the information 1s restricted to the exient prescribed n
the Companies Act 1985

Principal risks

The principal nisks and uncertainties are commented on within the
operating and financial review beginming on page 5

Research and development

The company 1s committed to developing innovative, cost-effective
and practical solutions for providing high quality services and
standards 1o 1ts customers, and for the benefit of the wider
community and the development of the business It seeks to take, as
part of this process, maximum advantage of wide-ranging expertise,
abilities and faciliies within the company

Employment polictes

Employees are hey to achieving the company’s business geals and
the company 1s committed to improving the shills of s pecple The
company respects the dignity and rights of every employee supports
them in performing various roles in society and challenges prejudice
and stercotyping The company 1s committed to involving
employees through open and regular communications about business
changes to allow a free flow of information and 1deas

The company participates extensively in Business tn the Community
programmes cncourage wider opportunities for women and for
people from ethmic minoninies and it actively support employees with
disabilities

Proper attention to health and safety 1s an indispensable pant of the
company's commitment to high standards i every aspect of the
business

Supplier payment policy and practice

Payment terms are specific to the type of contract and the relevant
commercial arrangements and are agreed with suppliers in advance

As at 31 March 2008 the average credint penod taken for trade
purchases was 21 days (2006/07 18 days)

Directors’ and officers’ insurance

The company maintains an appropriate level of directors’ and
officers’ nsurance whereby directors are indemmified agamnst
liabilities to third parties to the extent permitied by the Companics
Act




Directors’ report (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2008

Durectors

The directors of the company duning the year ended 31 March 2008
and thercafter are set out betow  All were directors for the whole year
except where otherwise indicated There are no directors’ nterests
that require disclosure under Companies Act 1985, other than those
disclosed i note 5 to the financial statements

Non-executive directors

R Bird (appointed 1 Apnl 2008)

P G S Entwistle (resigned 31 March 2008)
B M Gray (appointed 1 Apnil 2008)

D E Morton JP

Executive directors

J A Barnes (resigned 16 May 2008)

M Beesley (resigned 27 September 2007)

C I Brook (appointed 27 September 2007, resigned 31 March 2008)
C Cornish* (resigned 27 September 2007}
G Dixon (resigned 27 September 2007)

C H Elphick

P N Green* (appointed | May 2008)

B W Hurd (resigned 31 March 2008)

1 ) McAulay (appointed 27 September 2007)
J M Perne (appointed 1 Apnil 2008)

G L Sims (apponted 19 Apnl 2007)

TP Weller*

M R Wnight {appointed 27 Scptember 2007)
Company secretary

P A Davies (appointed 1 Apnil 2007, resigned 25 March 2008)
D P Hosker {appointed 25 March 2008)

*Director Umited Utilities PLC

At no trme 1n the year did any director have a matenal nterest in any
contract or arrangement which was sigmificant 1in relation to the
company’s business At 31 March 2008, the directors and their
immediate families had vanous interests in Umited Utilities PLC
shares which are disclosed 1n note 5 to the financial statements None
of the directors or their immediate famtlies had any interests 1n the
company

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the
financial statements n accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for
cach financital year Under that law the directors have clected to
prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounung Practice {Umted Kingdom
Accounting Standards and applicable !law) The financial statements
are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that perig,
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In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required
o

¢  select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently,

® make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent,

e state whether applicable Unuted Kimgdom Accounting
Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal
departures disclosed and explamed in the financial
statements, and

s  preparc the financial statements on the geing concern
basis unless 1t 1s inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue 1n business

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records
that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any ume the financial
position of the company and enable them to ¢nsure that the
financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985 They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and other irregulanties

The directors are responsible for the mamntenance and integnity of
the corporate and financial information ncluded on the company’s
website  Legislation 1n the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemmation of financial statements may differ
from legislation n other jurisdictions

Information given to auditors
Lach of the persons who 15 a director at the date of approval of this
report confirms that

(1) so far as the diwrector 15 aware there 15 no relevant audit
informatton of which the company's auditors are unaware and

(2) the director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have
taken as a director 1in order to make himself/herself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the company's
auditors are aware of that information

This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted in accordance
with the provisions of 5234ZA of the Compames Act 1985

Independent Auditors

The board 1s proposing to reappoint Deloitte & Touche LLP as
audutors at the forthcoming annual general meeung

Registered address
Haweswater House

Lingley Mcre Business Park
Lingley Green Avenue
Great Sankey

Warrington

WAS 3LP

Registered number 2366678
By order of the board

J M Perrie
Director
11 July 2008




Independent auditors’ report
to the members of United Unhues Water PLC

We have audited the financial statements of Umited Utiliies Water
PLC for the year ended 31 March 2008 which compnise the Profit and
Loss Account, the Statement of Total Recogmsed Gains and Losses
the Reconcthation of Movements in Shareholder’s Funds, the Balance
Sheet the Cash Flow Siatement and the related notes 1 to 30 These
financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies
set out therein

This report 15 made solely to the company’s members, as a body, n
accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors’
report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permutted by law
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
company and the company’s members as a body for our audit work,
for this report or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibihties for preparing the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (Unuted Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)
are set out 1n the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

Our responsibiiity 1s to audit the financial siatements in accordance
with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International
Standards on Auditing (United Kingdom and Ireland)

We report to you our opimion as to whether the financial statements
give a truc and fair view and arc properly prepared in accordance with
the Companics Act 1985 We alse report to you whether in our
opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report 1s consistent
with the financial statements The formation given wn the Directors’
Report includes that specific information presented m the Managing
Director’s statement and the Operating and Financial Review that 1s
cross-referred {from the business review and principal activities section
of the Directors Report

In addition we report te you if m our opmnion the company has not
kept proper accounting records, 1f we have not received all the
information and explanations we require for our audit or f
information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and
other transactions 15 not disclosed

We read the other information contamed i the annual report as
described in the contents section and consider whether 1t 1s consistent
with the audited financral statements  We constder the implications for
our report 1if we become aware of any apparenl misstalements or
material inconsistencies with the financial statements Our
responsibilities do not extend to any further information outside of the
annual report
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Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (United Kingdom and Ireland) 1ssued by the Auditing
Practices Board An audit mcludes examnation on a test basis, of
evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures 1n the financial
statements It also mcludes an assessment of the sigmificant
estimates and judgments made by the directors 1n the preparation of
the financial statements and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the company's circumstances, consistently apphed
and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtan all the
information and explanauons which we censidered necessary n
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give rcasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal
misstatement  whether caused by fraud or other iregularity or
error In forming our opmion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of mfermation n the financial
statements

Opinton
In our opimion

s« the financial statements give a true and fairr view, n
accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, of the state of the company's affairs
as at 31 March 2008 and of its profit for the year then
ended.

+ the financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 19835, and

s the information given in the Directors’
consistent with the financial statements

Report 13

Ddookie X Toucke LLP

Deloitte & Touche LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Audttors
Manchester

United Kingdom

11 July 2008




Profit and loss account

For the year ended 31 March

Turnover

Net operating expenses (including exceptional charges of £4 5 mulhon (2007
£22 0 million})

Operating profit

Net interest payable and similar charges

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation

Taxation on profit on ordinary activities

Profit for the financial year

Note

I{c) 2

8
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The above results for the current and preceding financial year relate to continuing operations

Statement of total recognised gains and losses

For the year ended 31 March

Profit for the financial year
Actuanial (losses)/gains on defined benefit pension schemes
Deferred tax attributable to actuanial losses/(gains)

Total recognised gamns and losses since last annual report and finanaal
statements

Reconciliation of movements in shareholder’s funds

For the year ended 31 March

Profit for the financial year

Dividends

Actuanal (losses)/gains on defined benefit pension schemes net of deferred tax
Net additton to shareholder’s funds

Opening sharcholder’s funds

Closing shareholder’s funds

24

Note

21,23
17 23

Note

23
923
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2008 2007
£fm £m
1,426.4 1,3182
(775.3) (749 5)
6511 5687
(193 6) (1377
4575 4310
93 1) (972)
364 4 3338
2008 2007
im £m
3644 3338
(747 446
209 (1349)
3106 3650
2008 2007
£m £m
364 4 3338
(299 3) (270 3)
(538) 312
113 947
2,6136 2,5189
2,624.9 26136
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Balance sheet

As at 31 March Note 2008 2007
£m £m
Fixed assets
langible assets 10 7,178 9 6,692 2
Investments 11 02 03
71791 6,692 5
Current assets
Stock raw matenials and consumables 34 3o
Debtors amounts falling due within one year 12a 888 4 2940
Debtors amounts falling due after more than one year 12b 44.3 131
Current asset 1nvestments 13 - 1,307 0
936.1 16180
Creditors amounts falling due within one year
Trade and other creditors td4a (517 1) (455 1)
Borrowings 14b 9716) (L1167)
(1,488 7) (1,571 8)
Net current (habihities)assets (552 6) 462
Total assets less current habihities 6,626 5 6,7387

Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year

Trade and other credutors 15a (o) {162 8)
Borrowings 15b (3,473.3) (3 605 4)

(3,584 9 (3 7682)
Provisions for ltabihities 17 (368 1) (3687)
Net assets excluding pension (habilityY/asset 2,6735 2,6018
Pension (habihity)/asset 21 (48 6) 118
Net assets including penston (habihity)/asset 2,624 9 26136

Capital and reserves

Called-up share capital 22,23 1,0253 1,0253
Share premium account 22,23 647 8 6478
Profit and loss account 23 9518 9405
Equity shareholder's funds 2,624.9 26136

Approved by the board of directors on 11 July 2008 and signed on 1its behalf by

J M Perrie
Dhrector
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Cash flow statement

For the year ended 31 March Note 2008 2007
£m fm
Net cash inflow from operating activities 25 963.7 8675

Returns on investments and servicing of finance

Interest received 62.4 587
Interest paid (239.2) (224 3)
Interest element of finance lease repayments (2.4) 29
Non-equity dividends paid (4.6) @1
Net cash outflow from returns on investment and servicing of finance (183.8) (177 6)
Taxation (84 2) (54 0)
Capital expenditure and financial investment

Purchase of tangible fixed assets (753.3) (561 0)
Grants and contributions received 10 171 191
Dhsposal of tangible fixed assets 149 42
Net cash outflow for capital expenditure and financial investment (72L.3) (5377)
Equity dividends paid 9 (299.3) {270 3)
Cash outflow before management of iquid resources and financing (324 9) (1721)

Management of liquid resources

Decrease/(increase) in shori-term deposits 1,307 0 {569 0)
Financing 27 (1,044 6) 7347
Decrease in cash and overdrafts in the year (62 5) (64)
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Accounting policies

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in respect
of the current and prior years in dealing with items which are considered
matenal in relation to the company’s financial statements

(a) Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of United Utilities Water PLC have been prepared
under the historical cost convention and in accordance with applicable
Umited Kingdom accounting standards and, except for the treatment of
certain grants and contributions (note (f)) with the Companies Act 1985

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles in the United Kingdom requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the

~  reported amounts of assets and lialities,

- disclosure of contingent assets and habihties at the date of the
financial statements and

- reported amounts of turnover and expenses during the financial year
Actual results could differ from these estimates

FRS 29 (IFRS 7) 'Financial Instruments Disclosures’ has been adopted 1n
the year lhe adoption of this standard has resulted in changes in
disclosure only and there was no effect on the carrying amounts of the
balances 1n the financial statements

(b) Cash

In the cash flow statement and related notes, cash includes cash at bank
deposits repayable on demand and overdrafts Deposits are repayable on
demand if they are tn practice, available within 24 hours without penalty

(¢) Turnover

Turnover represents the income receivable in the ordinary course of
business for services provided and excludes VAT  This includes an
estimate of the sales value of units supplied to customers between the date
of the tast meter reading and the year ¢nd

{d) Research and development
Expenduure on research and development 1s expensed as incurred

() Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets compnse nfrastructure assels (muns sewers
impounding and pumped raw water storage rescrvoirs, dams, sludge
pipelimes and sea outfalls) and other assets (including propertics and
overground plant and equipment) Emplovee costs incurred n
implementing the capital schemes of the company arc capitalised within
fixed assets

f1) Infrastructure assets

Infrastructure assets comprise a network of water and wastewater systems
Expendrture on the infrastructure assets relating to increases in capacity or
enhancements of the network are treated as additions, as are asset
replacements to maintain the operating capability of the network In
accordance with defined standards of service Repairs to mfrastructure
assets are treated as operating expenditure

Additions are mcluded at cost after deducuing related grants and
contributions  The depreciation charge for infrastructure assets is the
esttmated level of annual expenditure required to maintain the operating
capability of the network, which is based on the company’s independently
certified asset management plan covering a five year period
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fu) Other assets

Additions are included at cost  Treehold land 1s not depreciated
Other assets are depreciated by wnting off therr cost less themr
estimated residual value evenly over their estimated economic lives
based on management s judgement and expenence, which are
principally as follows

- Buildings 30-60 years

- Operational assets 5-80 yvears

- FMxtures, fittings, tools and equipment 3-40 years

- Computer software 3-10 years

(i11) Carrying value of tangible fixed assets

The carrying values of tangible fixed assets are reviewed for
impairment wherever circumstances indicate that the carrying value
of such assets may not be recoverable

(f) Grants and contributions

Capitai contnbutions towards infrastructure assets are deducted
from the cost of those asscts This 15 not wn accordance with
Schedule 4 to the Compamies Act 1985 under which the
infrastructure assets should be stated at theiwr purchase price or
production cost and the capnal contrbutions treated as deferred
imncome and released to the profit and loss account over the useful
life of the corresponding assets

The directors are of the opimon that, although provision 1s made
for depreciation of nfrastructure assets (see note l(e) (1)), these
assets do not have determinable fimie economic lives and the
capital contnbutions would therefore remain 1n the balance sheet in
perpetutty  The treatment otherwise required by the Companies
Act 1985 would not present a true and fair view of the company’s
effective investment n infrastructure assets The financial effect of
this accounting policy 1s set out in note 10

Grants and contributions receivable n respect of other tangible
fixed assets are treated as deferred income and released to the profit
and loss account over the useful hives of the corresponding assets

(g) Leased assets

Leases are classified according to the substance of the transaction

A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee 15 classified as a finance lease All other
leases are classified as operating leases

(1) Finance leases

Finance leases are capitalised in the balance sheet at their fair value
or, if lower at the present value of the mimimum lease payments
each determined at the inception of the lease  The corresponding
liabihty 1s shown as a finance lcase obligation to the lessor
Leasing repayments compnse both a capital and a finance element
Where the lease 1s of a fixed interest rate nature, the finance
element 15 charged to the profit and loss account so as to produce
an approximately constant periodic rate of charge on the
outstanding obligation Where the lease 1s of a floating interest rate
nature, the finance element charged to the profit and loss account
reflects the floaung interest rate charge incurred duning the peniod
on the outstanding obligation Such assets arc depreciated over the
shorter of their esumated useful lives and the period of the lease

(1) Operating leases
Operating lease rentals are charged to the profit and loss account on
a strarght line basis over the period of the lease




Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(h) Fixed asset investments
Fixed asset investments are stated at the lower of cost and recoverable
amouni

(1) Stocks

Stocks are stated at cost less any provision necessary to recogmise damage
and obsolescence Net realisable value represents the estimated setling
price less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be mcurred n
marketing, selhing and distnbution

(1) Current asset investments
Current asset tnvestments are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value

(k) Pensions

T'he company participates in the following pension schemes sponsored by
the United Utilities group of companies the Umted Uuliies Pension
Scheme (UUPS) and the United Utilnes Group of the Electnicity Supply
Pension Scheme (ESPS) UUPS has both a defined benefit section and a
defined contribution section, the defined contribution section constituting
less than 0 9 per cent of the total asset value of UUPS LSPS is a defined
benefit scheme  Both defined benefit schemes are closed 10 new
employees Under FRS 17 'Retirement benefits', the current service cost is
calculated using the projected unit credit method The pension schemes are
independent of the company’s finances

Actuanal valuations of the defined benefit schemes are performed at
intervals of not more than three years and the rates of contnibution payable
are determuined on the advice of the actuaries for each scheme having
regard to the results of these actuanal valuations  In any interveming years
the actuaries review the continuing approprialeness of the contribution
rates

Defined benefit assets are measured at fair value whilst habilites are
measured at present value The difference between the two amounts is
recognised as an asset or hability in the balance sheet

The cost of providing pension benefits to employees relating to the current
year’s service 13 mcluded within the profit and loss account within
employee costs The difference between the expected return on scheme
assets and interest on scheme habilities 18 included 1n thg profit and loss
account within nct interest payable

The actuarial assumptions adopted are determined by United Utthties PLC
after tahing advice from their actuarial advisors, Mercer Human Resource
Consulting Limited  The actuanal assumptions adopted affect the
operating results and profit on ordinary activities before taxation and are
disclosed in note 21 they include assumptions for the long term investment
return expected to be achieved on the schemes’ assets and the long term
increases expected to apply to pensionable earmings pension increases and
deferred pensicn increases  Actual experience may differ from the
assumptions adopted

In addition the Unuted Utihites group also operates defined contribution
pension schemes Payments are charged as employee costs as they fall
due  The company has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid

The disclosure requirements of FRS 17 'Retirement benefits' are set out 1n
note 21 together with details of pension and funding arrangements
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(I) Financial instruments

Fmmancial assets and financial habilities are recogmsed and
derecogniscd on the company’s balance sheet on the trade date
when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument

(v} Cash and short-term deposuts

Cash and short-term deposits include cash at bank and m hand

deposits and other short-term highly hquid investments which are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, have a matunity of
three months or less from the date of acquisition and which are
subject to an insignificant nisk of change 1n value In the cash flow

statement and related notes, cash 1s stated net of bank overdratis

(1) Financial investments

Investiments are ntally measured at far value including
transaction costs Investments are classified as available-for-sale
and are measured at subsequent reporting dates at fair value Gams
and losses ansing from changes n fair value are recognised
directly 1n equity, until the secunty 1s disposed of or 1s determined
to be impamred, at which time the cumulative gam or loss
previously recogmsed in equity 1s inciuded 1n the net profit or loss
for the period

(u1} Trade debtors and trade creditors

Trade debtors are measured on initial recognition at fair value, and
are subsequently measured at amorused cost less any impairment
for irrecoverable amounts  Estmated irrecoverable amounts are
based on historical experience of the debtor balance

[rade creditors are imtially measured at far value and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost

(rv) Financial habilities and equity

Financial habihties and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into An
cquity instrument 1s any contract that evidences a residual mterest
tn the assets of the company after deducting all of its labilities

(v} Equuty instruments
Equity tnstruments 1ssued by the company are recorded at the
proceeds reccived, net of direct 1ssuce costs

(vi} Borrowing costs and finance income

All borrowmg costs and finance income that are not directly
attributable to the acquisition 1ssuc or disposal of a finanuial asset
or financial hability are recognised n the profit and loss account in
the period in which they are accrued  Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or 1ssue of a financial asset or
financial habihty are incdeded in the imual far value of that
instrument

(vii) Derwvative financial mstruments and hedge accounting

Interest rate swap agreements and finanual futures are used to
manage mterest rate exposure while the company enters into cross-
currency swaps to manage s exposure to fluctuations in foreign
cachange rates  The company docs not use denivative financial
instruments for speculative purposes Al finanoial denvatives arc
recognised 1n the balance sheet at fair value  Changes in the fair
value ot all denvative financial instruments are recogmised 1o the
profit and loss account within net mterest payable as they arise,
cacept for dervatives that are designated and etfective in terms of
cash flow hedging relationships 1 which case the gains and losses
are defcrred 1n equity
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(1} Financial instruments (continued)

(vier) Fair value hedges

T'or an ctiective hedge of an exposure to changes in the far value the hedged
ttem s adjusted for changes in fair value attributable to the nisk being hedged
with the corresponding entry 1n profit or loss  Gamns or losses from
remeasuring the denvative are recognised in profit or loss

Where changes in the fair value of a denivative differ from changes in the fair
value of the hedged item attnibutable to the nisks being hedged, the hedge
mettectiveness 1s recorded in the profit and loss account within net imterest
payable lledge accounting v discontinued prospectively when the hedging
instrument s sold, terminated or exercised where the hedge relationship no
longer meets the cnteria for hedge accounting in accordance with FRS 26
'Minancial Instruments Recognition and Measurement’, or where the hedge
designation 1s revohed

Any adjustment that has been recogmised to the hedged item for which the
effective interest rate 1s used 15 amortised to the profit and loss account and
15 based on the recalculated eftective interest rate at the tume at which
amonisation Ccommenees

{ix) Cash flow hedges

Changes 1n the far value of denvative financial instruments that are
designated and effective as hedges of future cash flows are recogmised
directly in equity and the neffective portion 1s recogmised immedhately in the
profit and loss account within nct interest payable  Hedge accounung 15
discontinued when the hedge designation is revohed or the hedging
instrument expires or 15 sold ternunated, or exercised or no longer qualifies
for hedge accounting

At that ume, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument
recogised i cquaty 1s retamed in equity until the forecast transaction occurs
If a hedged transaction 15 no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative
gaim ot loss recogmised in equity 15 transferred to net profit or loss for the
period

(x} Financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through

profit or loss

Boerrowings arc designated at fair value through profit or loss at mception
where the complevaty of the swaps means that they are disallowed from
being allocated 1n a2 hedge relationship despite there being signmificant fair
value oftset between the hedged item and the denvauve iself The otherwise
meonsistent accounting  trealment that would have resulted allows the
company to satisty the criteria for this designation

Frnancial lrabihities at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value,
with any resultant gain or loss recognised in profit or loss [ he net gain or
loss recognised incorporates any intercst paid on the financial habthity  The
treatment of financial liabihities designated at fawr value through profit or loss
1s consistent with the company’s documented nisk management strategy
Where applicable, hedge accounting will be apphied

(xt) Bank borrowings

Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds
received net of directissue costs  Finance charges including premiums
payable on scttiement or redemption and dircet 15suc costs, are accounted for
on an amortised cost basis to the profit and loss account using the cffective
interest method and are added to the carmyang amount of the instrument to the
extent that they are not settled in the period in which they arise  In some
cases borrowings are designated at fair value through profit or loss
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(m) Envirenmental remediation

Environmental expenditure that relates to current or future turnover
1s expensed or capitalised as appropnate  Expenditure that rclates
to an existing condition caused by past operations and does not
contribute to current ot future earnings 1s eapensed

Liabihities for environmental costs are recogmsed when there 15 a
legal or constructive obligation, environmental assessments
indicate clean-ups are probable, and the associated costs can be
reasonably estimated Generally, the uming of these provisions
concides with the commitment to a format plan of action or, If
earher on divestment or on closure of mactive sites

(n) Taxation

Current tax, primartly UK corporation tax, 1s provided at amounts
expected to be pard (or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date

Deferred tax 1s recognised m respect of tming differences that
have originated but not reversed at the balance sheet date where
transactions or events that result in an obligation to pay more tax n
the future or a nght to pay less tax n the future have occurred
Timing differences arc differences between the company’s taxable
profits and 1ts resulis as stated 1n the financial statements that arnise
from the mclusion of gains and losses 1n tax assessments 1n periods
different from those 1n which they are recognised in the financial
statements

Deferred tax 1s measured at the average ta rates that are expected
to apply 1n the peniods in which the timing differences are expected
1o reverse based on tax rates and tax law s that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date Deferred tax s
measured on a discounted basis to reflect the time value of money
over the period between the balance sheet date and the dates on
which 1t 15 estimated that the underlying timing differences will
reverse  The discount rates used reflect the post tax yields to
matunty that can be obtained on government bonds with simular
maturity dates and currencies to those of the deferred tax assets or
habilities
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

2 Segmental information

I he company operated in the United Kitngdom in one class of business as stated 1n the directors’ report

3 Net operating ex penses

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 1s stated afier charging/{crediting)

Note 2008 2007
£m fm
Employee costs
Wages and salaries 128 1 1151
Social security costs 101 95
Pension costs 256 235
163 8 148 1
Less charged to capital schemes (64.7) (55 8)
Charged to profit and loss account 991 923
Depreciation
Owned non-infrastructure fixed assets 2035 187 1
Non-mnfrastructure fixed assets held under finance leases 10 17 19
Non-mnfrastructure depreciation 2052 18% 0
Infrastructure depreciation 10 106 5§ 1052
Total depreciation 10 3117 294 2
Raw materials and consumables 367 325
Other operating expenses
Hired and contracted services 1358 913
Power 420 48 4
Property rates 596 546
Charge for bad and doubtful debts 12¢ 49.7 388
Other operating expenses 434 815
Auditors’ remuneration .4 04
Amortisation of grants and contributions 16 (59) (55)
Research and development 1.0 10
Operating leases
- plant and machinery 0.7 08
- land and buildings 22 17
Exceptional charges - restructuring costs 4.5 135
- Ofwat penalty - g5
Other income 4 (56) (4 5)
3278 3305
Total net operating expenses 7753 749 5

Managed service fees and asset charges from parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings are contained within other operating costs
Fees payable to Deloitie & Touche LLP for non-audit services during the year were £0 2 muthon, pnimanly relating to regulatory
work (2007 £02 million) The Deloitte & Touche LLP fee for audit scrvices for 2007/08 amounted to £0 2 mullion (2007 £02
milhon)

Employee costs including business restruciuning exceptional items net of charges to capital schemes amount to £103 6 mllion

(2007 £98 2 million) Exceptional restructuring costs tnclude £4 5 mullion (2007 £5 9 mullion) in respect of stafT severance costs
The exceptional charge for the Ofwat penalty in the prior year related to breaches of intra-group trading rules
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

4 Other income
Note 2008 2007
£m £m
Profit on disposal of tangible fixed assets 25 55 35
Rents receivable 01 10
Other iIncome 3 56 45
5 Durectors

The aggregate emoluments of the directors in 2008 amounted to £1,736,730 1n respect of services allocated to the company (2007
£1,779 174) Emoluments comprise salanies, fees, taxable benefits and the value of short-term incentive awards In addition, the
company made contributions to the pension schemes of £253 163 on behalf of the directors (2007 £295,166) The emoluments of the
highest paid director B W Hurd 1n respect of services allocated to the company amounted to £314 719 (2007 £108,828) Pcnsion
contributions mn respect of the highest paid director were £26 353 (2007 £11,919) The emoluments of T P Weller are not included in
the aggregate directors’ emoluments figures as he was remunerated by Umited Utthties PLC and his emoluments are not recharged to
Umted Utihitres Water PLC

There were no directors who had incentive plans which vested during the year ended 31 March 2008 Seven directors had incentive
plans which vested during the year ended 31 March 2007, with an aggregatc value of £342 898

For the directors in office as at 31 March 2008 and their families, the table below shows the interests, all of which were beneficial in the
ordinary shares and options to subscribe for ordinary shares i United Utlihes PLC (details of the mterests of T P Weller 1n United
Utihitzes PLC are disclosed in that company’s financial statements) Details of the employee Sharesave Scheme and the executive share
option scheme operated by United Unlines PLC are given 1 that company's financial statements

Interest tn shares at 31 March 2008 Interest tn shares at 31 March 2007

Executive Employee Executive Employee

Ordinary option sharesave Ordinary option sharesave

shares scheme scheme shares scheme scheme

J A Barnes 15,312 20,333 - 21437 24 200 278
C ) Brook 1,843 7,590 - - - -
C H Elphick 23,641 - - 22,736 - 666
P G S Entwistle 2,332 - - 2,332 - -

The following directors had no interests m shares at either 31 March 2008 or 31 March 2007 B W Hurd [ ] McAulay, D E Morton
JP G L Simsand M R Wnight

Two directors exercised options during the year (2007 four)

Wiuth the exception of G Dixon, all executive directors are members of and contnibute 10 the United Utihties Pension Scheme, which 1s an
exempt approved pension scheme with defined benefit and defined contribution sections of membership It contans sections which are
open to all eligible employees It provides pensions and other benefits to members within HM Revenue & Customs hmits  The scheme
provides a pension on normal retirement at age 60 of between 1/45™ and 1/60™ of pensionable earnings for each completed year of service
The maximum pension 1s two thirds of pensionable earmings Early retirement 1s possible from the age of 50 1f the company agrees

G Dixon 1s 2 member of, and contributes to the United Utilities Group of the Electricity Supply Pension Scheme a defined benefit scheme
which provides on normal rettrement at the age of 60 a pension equal to 1/80™ of pensionable earnings for each completed year of service
(plus 3/80ths cash) Early retirement 15 pessible from the age of 50 1f the company agrees Benefits for executive members in the United
Utihues Group of the Electricity Supply Pension Scheme are equivalent to those provided to executive members in the United Utiittes
Pension Scheme
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

6 Employees
Note 2008 2007
Number Number
Average number of persons employed dunng the year
Licensed unlity operauons 3,906 3 490
7 Net interest payable and similar charges
2008 2007
£m £m
Interest payable and similar charges
On bank loans, overdrafis and other loans 2223 1977
On finance leases 19 32 29
On borrowings from parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings 164 231
Interest payable before preference share dividends and fair value
adjustments 2419 2237
Preference share dividends 91 91
Total interest payable 2510 2328
Fair value losses/(gains) on debt and derivative mstruments'
Fair value hedge relationships
- Borrowings 1559 (105 8)
- Designated swaps (88 3) 810
676 {24 8)
Held for trading denivatives — cconomic hedge (78 1) 278
(10 5) 30
Financial mstruments at fair value through profit or loss
- Bomowings designated at farr value through profit or loss’ 69 (26 3)
- Held for trading derivatives — economic hedge (25.0) 286
(31.9) 23
Held for trading derivatives — 2005-2010 regulatory hedge 210 (82 6}
Net payments on swaps and debt under fair value option 418 529
Held for trading derivatives — other’ (0.6) 02
Other - 18
Net fair value losses/(gains)’ 198 {22 4)
Total interest payable and other similar charges 2708 2104
Investment income
Interest receivable and simiiar income
- Parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings (227) -
- External 407) (60 6)
Net pension interest income 21 (13 8) {121}
Total investment income (77 2) (727}
Net interest payable and similar charges 1936 1377
Notes
1 Farr value losses/{gains) include foreign exchange losses of £152 4 mullion (2007 £45 4 million gains) exciuding those on
mstruments measured at fair value through profit or loss
2 Includes £28 2 nullion gain (2007 £nul) on the valuation of debt reported at fair value through profit or loss due to changes
tn credst spread assumptions
3 Includes fair value movements in relation to other economic hedge denivatives relating to debt held at amortised cost
4 Includes £3t 9 muthon (2007 £33 3 nullion) interest on swaps and debt under fair value option
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8 Taxation on profit on erdinary activities
(a) Analysis of charge in the year

2008 2007

im £m

Current tax
UK corporation tax at 30 per cent (2007 30 per cent) 106 0 798
Tax on exceptional items L)) 40
Prior year adjustments (84) -
Total ordinary current tax 962 758
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of tuming differences 272 581
Decrease/(increase) in discount 638 (387)
Prior year adjustments 84 20
Adjustment in respect of the abolition of industrial building allowances (78.3) -
Effect of change 1n tax rate on opening balance (24.2) -
Total deferred tax (credit)/charge 31) 21 4
Total tax charge on profit on ordinary activities 931 972

(b) Factors affecting current tax charge for the year

The table below reconctles the notwonal current tax charge at the UK corporation tax rate to the actual current charge for taxation

2008 2007
£m £m
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 4575 4310
% %
UK corporation tax rate oo 300
Capital allowances in excess of depreciation (59 77
Prnior year adjustments (18) -
Other timing differences o 57
Net {non-taxable income)non-deductible expenses (12) 10
Actual current tax rate 210 176
9 Dividends
Amounts recognised as distributions to equnty holders in the year compnise
2008 2007
£m £m
Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2007 at 21 1p per share (2006 19 1p per 196 3 1782
share)
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2008 at 11 1p per share (2007 9 9p per 103 0 921
share)
2993 2703

United Utihies Water PLC has increased 1ts ordmary dividend payment to United Utuhties North West PLC by 10 7 per cent to
£299 3 million for the year The dividend policy 1s consistent with the company's performance and the management of the economc
risks of the business

The direciors have recommendcd a final ordinary dividend for 2007/08 of £770 0 mullion This 1s subject to approval by the equity
sharcholders of the company and hence, has not been included as a habihty m these financial statements  The payment consists of a
special dividend of £550 0 milhon to realign the caputal structure of United Utilities Water PLC with Ofwat’s guidelines, n addition
to a final dividend of £220 0 million in respect of the year ended 31 March 2008

The company’s redeemable preference shares are included n the balance sheet as a habihty and, accordingly, the dividends payable
on them are included in net interest payable (sce note 7)
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10 Tangible fixed assets

Cost

At 1 Apnl 2007
Additions

Grants and contributions
Transfers

Msposals

At 31 March 2008

Depreciation

At 1 Apnil 2007
Charge for the vear
Disposals

At 31 March 2008

Net book value
At 31 March 2008

At 31 March 2007

United Utilities Water PLC

Freehold land Infrastructure Operational  Tixtures, fittings, Assets i Total
and Assets Structures tools and course of
buildings equipment construction

£m fm fm £m fm £m

199 0 4,360 3 39777 5119 600 0 9648 9

43 1912 831 407 5056 8249

- (17 1) - - - (171

62 737 106 6 18 1 (204 6) -

(5 6) - (35 8) _(312) - (72 6)

203 9 4,608 1 4,131 6 5395 901 ¢ 10,384 1

629 1,483 8 11282 2818 - 29367

77 106 5 1420 555 - 3117

{33 - 357 222 - {63 2)

653 1,590.3 1,234 5 3151 - 3,2052

138 6 30178 2,897 1 224 4 901 0 7,178 9

136 1 28765 2,849 5 2301 600 ¢ 66922

Grants and contributions received relating to infrastructure assets have been deducted from the cost of fixed assets n order to show a
true and farr view (see note 1 (f)) As a consequence, the net book value of tangible fixed assets 1s £131 0 mulhon (2007 £105 6
million} lower than 1t would have been had this treatment not been adopted

Infrastructure renewals

Expenditure on asset replacements to maintain the operating capability of the water and wastewater network 1n accordance with
defined standards of service 15 capitahsed, and depreciation 1s charged based on the expenditure set out n the company s
independently verified Asset Management Plan for the period 1 April 2005 to 31 March 2010, in accordance with FRS 15 "Tangible

Fixed Assets'

The amount of excess depreciation over expenditure 1s as follows

Excess depreciation over expenditure at 1 April 2007

Expenditure on asset replacements to mamntain the network in the year

Depreciation for the year

Excess depreciation over expenditure at 31 March 2008

34

£m
(353)

1201

(106 3}

(21.7)



United Utilities Water PLC

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
10 Tangible fixed assets (continued)
Operational structures held under finance lease

Within tangible fixed assets are operational structures held under finance leases at the following amounts

Operational structures 2008 2007

£m £m
Cost at 31 March 81.0 810
Accumulated depreciation at 31 March e (150)
Net book value at 31 March 64.3 660

The depreciation charge for the year for assets held under finance leases 1s £1 7 muillion (2007 £1 9 miihon)

2008 2007
£m £m
Capital commitments

Contracted but not provided for 484 5 2734

11 Fixed asset investments
Other
investments
£m
Cost at | April 2007 03
Write-off of investments 1n loan notes (01}
Cost at 31 March 2008 0.2

Details of other investments, alt of which are unlisted held directly by the company and registered in England and Wales, are

Other Investments Description of holding Proportion  Nature of business
held
WRe PLC A’ Ordinary shares of £1 each 14 09% Water and wastewaler
research

8 per cent convertible unsecured loan 26 54%
stock 2014

Paypoint Network Limited Ordimnary shares of | pence each 0 05% Cash collectton service
Deferred shares of 1 pence each 0 06%

Lingley Mere Management Company Limited Ordinary shares of £1 each 93 27% Lstate management

The company also has an interest in Rivington Heritage Trust and Rossendale Groundwork Trust Limited both of which are hmited
by guarantee Consolidated financial statements have not been prepared as both the results and the net assets of ali of the company’s
subsidianes are not material tn the overall context of United Unlities Water PLC
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12 Debtors
(a) Amounts falling due within one year
Note 2008 2007
£m £m
Net trade deblors 940 81¢
Amounts owed by parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings
- trading balances 30.3 136
- fixed rate loans 4975 -
- floating rate loans 40.6 406
Other debtors 142 110
Prepayments and accrued income 114.7 1101
Current derivative financial instruments 20 971 377
888 4 294 0

The fixed rate loans owed by fellow subsidiary undentakings of £497 5 million principally relate to a new nter-company funding

structure set up during the year

(b) Amounts falling due after more than one year
Note 2008 2007
£m im
Non-current derivative financial instruments 20 443 131
(c) Allowance for bad and doubtful debts
2008 2007
£m fm
At beginning of the year (138 6) (132 4)
Amounts charged to operating expenses “@"n (389
Frade debtors written-off 293 327
At 31 March (159.0) (138 6}
(d) Ageing of gross debtors
Aged lessthan  Aged between Aged greater Carrying
one year one year and than two vears value
two years
£fm £m £m £m
At 31 March 2008
Gross trade debtors 106 5 476 989 2530
Amounts owed by parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings 568 4 - - 568 4
Other debtors 142 - - 142
Prepayments and accrued income 1147 - - 1147
8038 476 989 950 3
At 31 March 2007
Gross trade debtors 902 458 836 2196
Amounts owed by parent and fellow subsidhary undertakings 542 - - 542
Other debtors 110 - - 110
Prepayments and accrued income 1101 - - 1101
2635 45 8 836 3949

The above analysis n respect of gross trade debtors reconciles to net trade debtors by deduction of the allowance for doubtful debtors of
£159 0 mllion (2007 £138 6 million) The company manages uts bad debt nisk by providing against gross trade debtors  Thus allowance
13 calculated by reference to customer categornies rather than on the age profile of gross debtor batances 1115 therefore not possible to age
the allowance for doubtful debtors
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12 Debtors {continued)
(e) Analysis of net trade and sundry debtors by category
2008 2007
£m £fm
Debtors 1n respect of unmetered water supplies 74 4 650
Debtors 10 respect of metered water supphies 100 5 872
Sundry debtors 48 0 499
2229 202 1

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other debtors approximates to their fair vaiue at both 31 March 2008 and 31
March 2007

13 Current asset investments
2008 2007
£m £m
Short-term deposits - 13070

Short-term deposits have been replaced 1n part by additional fixed rate loans owed by fellow subsidiary undertakings of £497 5 million
{see note 12a)

14 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
(a) Trade and other creditors
Note 2008 2007
£m £m
Trade creditors 260 157
Amounts owed to parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings 254 58
Taxation and social security 728 605
Deferred grants and contributions 16 62 54
Accruals and deferred imcome 3616 3194
Current denvative financial instruments 20 251 483
5171 4551
(b} Borrowings
2008 2007
£m £m
Bonds, bank and other term borrowings 478 4 9418
130 000 000 7 0 per cent £1 redeernable preference shares 1300 1300
Bank overdrafis 88.4 259
Finance lease obligations 26 120
Amounts owed to parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings 2622 70
971 6 11167

The £130 0 milhon 7 0 per cent redeemable preference shares have been presented as amounts falling due within one year as they may be
redeemed by not less than 30 days written notice served by the company or the shareholder Preference sharcholders are not entitled to
receive notice of, attend or vote at, any general meeting of the company However preference sharcholders receive priority to other
classes of sharcholders on a winding up hquidanon or other return of capnal to shareholders of the company The preference shares
have a latest redemption date of 1 October 2099 Further information on the company’s borrowings 1s given 1n note 19
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15 Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year

(a) Trade and other creditors

Other creditors
Deferred grants and contributions
Non-current derivative financial instruments

(b) Borrowings

Bonds bank and other term borrowings
Finance lease obligations
Amounts owed to parent and fellow subsidiary undertahings

Further information on the company’s borrowings 1s given in note 19

16 Deferred grants and contributions

At beginning of the year

Received 1n the year
Credited 1o the profit and loss account

At 31 March
Represented by
Amounts falling due within one vear

Amounts falling due afier one year

At 31 March

38

Nole

16
20

Note

25

14a
15a

Unated Utilities Water PLC

2008 2007
£m £m
34 34

86.0 873

222 721

1116 162 8

2008 2007
£m £m

3,0028 3,093 6
563 631
414 2 448 7
34733 3,6054

2008 2007
£m £m

927 8838
54 94

(59 (55

922 927
6.2 54

860 873

922 927
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17 Provisions for habilities

At 1 Apnt 2007

At 1 Apnl 2007 - disclosed separately in pensions note 21
Net prefit and loss (credit)/charge

Change 1n taxatton rate

Total movement on profit and loss account

Actuanal losses on defined benefit pension schemes
Utihised in the year

At 31 March 2008 - disclosed separately 1n pensions note 21

At 31 March 2008

Deferred Deferred

tax: pension tax other Other Total
(note 21) (note 18)

fm £fm £m £m

- 3583 104 368 7

50 - - 50

27n - 238 51 262

(03) (239 - (242)

30 (01) 51 20

(209) - - (209)

- - (56) (56)

189 - - 189

- 3582 99 3681

Other provisions include legal claims of £9 2 mullion (2007 £9 2 million) The timing of the setilement of these legal claims 1s

uncertain but expected to occur within twelve months of the balance sheet date

restructuring costs which are expected to be incurred within the next twelve months

18 Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s provided as follows

Accelerated capital allowances
Short-term timing ditferences
Undiscounted provision for deferred tax

Discount

Discounted provision for deferred tax

19 Borrowings

Other provisions also include obligations for

Note 2008 2007
£m fm

1,072 9 1,191 3

(175) (17 6)

1,055 4 1,173 7

(697 2) (815 4)

17 3582 3583

Ihe following analysis provides mformation about the contractual terms of the company’s borrowings I or more information about
the company’s exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange risk see note 20

Non-current iahilities

Bank and other term borrowings

Bonds

Finance lease obligations

Amounts owed to parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings

Current llabtlinies

Bank overdrafis

Bank and other term borrowings

Preference shares

Bonds

Finance lease obligations

Amounts owed to parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings

2008 2007
£m £m
5020 2360
2,500 8 28576
563 631
4142 448 7
34733 36054
884 259
5.2 2582
1300 1300
4732 683 6
12.6 120
262.2 70
971.6 1,116 7
4,444.9 4,7221
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19 Borrowings (continued)

Terms and debt repayment schedule
The principal economic terms and conditions of outstanding borrowings were as follows

2008 2007
Cumency  nll vale e vale e
£m £m fm £m
Borrowings in fair value hedge relationships
5 625% 300m bond GBP 2027 2810 3011 3090 2959
5% 200m bond GBP 2035 1714 1916 1919 188 4
5 25% 150m bond GBP 2010 1505 1485 1490 1458
5 375% 150m bond GBP 2018 1490 147 4 1527 1429
4 875% 600m bond EUR 2009 4790 4732 4122 403 4
4 25% 500m bond EUR 2020 3457 3734 3207 mz7
6 625% 1 000m bond EUR 2007 - - 7059 673 8
0 44% + HIBOR (floating) 1 50m bond HKD 2007 - - 98 98
5 02% JPY 10 000m dual currency loan JIPY/USD 2029 566 622 514 539
Borrowings designated at fair value through profit or loss
6 875% 400m bond (owed to parent undertaking) usD 2028 2087 2087 2175 2175
1 135% 3,000m bend IPY 2013 144 144 i25 125
Borrowings measured at amortised cost
Amounts owed to parent and feilow subsidiary undertahings GBP Various 4677 4677 2382 2382
1 97% + RP1200m 1L loan GBP 2016 1941 2090 1986 2007
Long term bank borrowings- floaung GBP gg?;- 2000 2000 2544 253 ¢
Preference shares GBP 2099 1300 1300 1300 1300
1 9799% + RPI 100m IL bond GBP 2035 102.3 1087 1073 104 7
1 7829% + RPI 100m IL bond GBP 2040 953 1076 1015 1036
1 5802% + RP1 100m IL bond GBP 2042 889 107 2 945 1033
1 847% + RPI 100m IL bond GBP 2056 834 106 7 997 1025
1 815% + RP1 100m IL bond GBP 2056 824 106 2 1025 102 1
I 662% + RP1 100m IL bond GBP 2056 780 1060 933 1019
| 585% + RP] 100m IL bond (€3] 2057 757 1020 - -
3375%+ RPI 50m IL bond GBP 2032 713 576 752 554
1 3258% + RPI 50m EL bond GBP 2041 417 537 44 4 517
1 397% + RPI 50m IL bend aBP 2046 414 536 439 516
| 5366% + RPI 50m IL bond GBP 2043 441 535 46 8 515
1 7937% + RPI 50m [L bond GBP 2049 464 534 489 514
| 5865% + RPI 50m IL bond GBP 2056 379 530 455 509
1 556% + RPI 50m 1L bond GBP 2056 377 527 453 506
1 435% + RPI 50m IL bond GBP 2056 359 525 433 505
1 702% + RP1 50m IL bond GBP 2057 396 514 - -
1 3805% + RP135m [L bond GBP 2056 246 368 297 353
1 66% +RPI 35m IL bond GBP 2037 30.1 354 - -
Commussion for the New Towns loan GBP 2053 486 310 532 32
1 591% + RPI 25m IL bond GBP 2056 189 264 228 254
Long term bank borrowings - fixed GBP %ggg- 51 50 216 5 2100
Other borrowings
Bank overdrafts GBp 2008 884 88 4 259 259
Finance lease obligations GBP 2014 689 689 751 751
41347 $.4449 47693 47221

The amount of unamortised bond discount contained within the company’s borrowings amounts to £18 4 million (2007 £22 5 mullion)

Borrowings are unsecured Funding rmised in currencies other than sterling 15 generally swapped to sterhing to maich funding costs to
mceme and assets
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19 Borrowings {continued)

Notes

Base interest rates

HIBOR Hong Kong Inter-Bank Offered Rate

Currency

GBP Pound Sterhng

EUR Euro

HKD Heng hong Dollar

USD United States Dollar

IPY Japanese Yen

Index-hnked debt Index-linked debt — this debt 15 adjusted for movements in RP1 with reference to a base RPI estabhished at the
IL trade date

RPI Retail Price index — the UK gencral index of retail prices {for al} items) as published by the Office of National

Statistics (Jan 1987 = 100) as published by HM Government

Finance lease obhigations

Finance lease obhgations are payable as follows

Minimum lease payments Present vatue of mimimum lease

payments

2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

Amounts payable under finance leases

- within one year 126 120 126 120
- in the second to fifth year inclusive 556 542 456 43 6
- after five years 16.0 . 318 107 195
84.2 98 0 689 751

Less future finance charges (15.3) (229 - -
Present value of lcase obligations 689 751 689 751

L.ess amounts due for settlement within 12 months (12 6) (120)
Amounts due for settlement in more than 12 months 563 631

Finance lcase obligations relate to operational structures Interest rates implicit an the mimimum lease payments were fixed on
completion of the assets when the pnimary period of the lease commenced In addition, contingent rentals are either payable or
recervable which adjust the mimimum lease payments to reflect changes in future market rates of interest  These contingent rentals are
recogmsed as a finance income or expense in the year to which they relate  The finance expense in the year relating to contingent rentals
was £2 6 mullion (2007 £3 4 milhon) The net finance charge (afier adjusting for contingent rentals) for the year was £3 2 mullion (2007
£29 muliion) and the effective borrowing rate (after adjusting for contingent rentals) for the year was 5 05 per cent (2007 4 26 per cent)
The average lease term 1s s1x years (2007 seven years)

The minimum lease payments are also subject to adjustments for future tax charges Any adjustment to the rentals 15 recognised as an
ncrease or reduction to the future finance expense over the remaining term of the lease  The company s obligations under finance leases

are unsecured

The directors constder that the fair values of the company’s tease obligations approximate to their carrying values at both 31 March 2008
and 31 March 2007
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20 Fmaneial instruments
Risk management

All of the company’s activities involve analysis, management and, in some cases acceptance of risk or a combination of nisks The most
impottant types of financial nsk are credit nsk, hquidity risk and market rish Marhet rish includes foreign exchange interest rate and
inflation rishs

The company’s risk management policies are designed to identify and analyse these risks, to set appropnate risk hmits and controls and
to monitor the risks and limits continualiy by means of reliable and up-to-date systems The company modifies and enhances 1ts risk
management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets and products  The board formulates the high level company risk
management policy The Umted Utihittes PLC group’s treasury commiitee 15 responsible for monitoring the implementation of the
policy The board has approved all of the classes of financial instruments used by the company The United Utihities PLC group’s
treasury function, which is authorised to conduct the day-to-day treasury activities of the company reports annually to the board and
quarterly to the treasury commitice

The company’s exposure to risk and its objectives, policies and processes for managing risk and the methods used for measuning nisk
have not changed since the prior year

Credit risk

Credit nsk 1s the nisk that financial loss arises from the failure of a customer or counterparty to meet its obligations under a contract It
arises principally from trade finance {the supply of services to the public and other businesses) and treasury activities (the investment of
essential hiqudity) The company has policies and procedures to control and monutor credit nsk  The company does not believe 1t 1s
exposed to any matenal concentrations of credit nsk - Concentrations of credit nsk with respect to trade debtors are limited due to the
company’s customer base consisting of a large number of unrelated households and businesses Due to this the directors believe there 1s
no further credit nisk provision required 1n excess of the allowance for bad and doubtful debts

The company looks to manage 1ts nsk from trade finance through the effective management of customer relationships  The Water
Industry Act 1991 (as amended by the Water Industry Act 1999) prohibits the disconnection of a water supply for non-payment and the
hmiting of a supply with the intention of enforcing payment for certain premises including domestic dwelhings However allowance 1s
madc by the water regulator 1n the price limits at each price review for a proportion of debt deemed to be irrecoverable

The counterpartics m respect of treasury activities consist of financial institutions and other bodies considered to have good credut
ratings Although the company 1s potentially exposed to credit loss in the event of non-performance by counterpartics such credit risk 1s
measured and controlled through regular review of the credit ratings assigned to the counterparties by credit rating agencies, and by
hmuting the total amount of cxposure to any one party Management do not expect any counterparty to fail to meet 1ts obligations and
there has not been any such failure during the year or in the preceding year

The maximum exposure to credit risk 1s represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset 1n the balance sheet At 31 March the
company’s maximum cxposure to credit nsk was as follows

2008 2007

£m £m

Cash and short-term deposits - 13070
Trade and other debtors 7913 2563
Derivative financial instruments 141 4 508
932.7 16141

Cash, short-term deposits and trade and other debtors are measured at amortised cost  Derwvative financial instruments are measured at
fair value
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk 15 the nsk that the company will not have sufficient funds to meet the obligations or commitments ansing from 1ts business
operations and 1ts financial habilines The company manages the hquidity profile of its assets, liabilitics and commitments so that cash
flows are appropriately balanced and all funding obligations are met when due  The board approves a hquidity framework within which
the business operates  Performance aganst this framework 15 actively monitored and reported monthly to the board using 2 headroom
figure

The company had available commutted borrowing facilites as follows

2008 2007

£m £m

Expiring withun one year 25.0 250
Expiring after one year but in less than two years 50.0 500
Expiring after more than two years 525.0 3250
Total undrawn borrowing facihties 600.0 4000

In addion to the committed facilities available, the company uses its curo-commercial paper programme to help manage its hquidity
position
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Maturity analysis

Concentrations of rish may arise 1f large cash flows are concentrated within particular time pertods  The matunity profile in the following
table represents the forecast future contractual principal and mterest cash flows in relation to the company’s financial habilities and
derivatives on an undiscounted basis Derivative cash flows have been shown net where there 15 a contractual agreement to settle on a
net basis, otherwise the cash flows are shown gross

More

1 year or 1-2 2-3 3-4 +4-5 than§

Total'  Adjustment less years years years years years

2008 £m £m £m £m im £m £m im
Bonds 83720 - 5892 2345 723 767 792 73201
Bank borrowings and other 898 8 - 116 0 226 2217 721 1633 5021
Finance lease 842 - 126 129 133 143 149 160
Preference shares 1300 - 1300 - - - - -
Parent and fellow subsidiary borrowings 1,283 0 - 2890 268 268 268 268 8868
Adjustment to carrying value (6323 1) (63231) - - - - - -
Financial iabihties excluding derivatives 4,444 9 (6323 1) 11368 296 8 1353 1899 2842 87250

Derivatives
Payable 24217 - 10998 7620 596 603 1633 2767
Receivable (23490) - (1,109 6) (770 3) {362) {524y (1204} {2401)
Adjustment to carrying value (166 8) (166 8) - - - - - -
Derivatives (94 1) (166 8) (9 8) (8 3) 34 79 429 366
1 year or 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5  More than
Total' Adjustment’ less years years years years 5 years
2007 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Bonds §,1011 - 8389 5184 2290 719 727 63702
Bank borrowings and other 1,111 8 - 3222 267 216 218 712 6433
Finance lease 980 - 120 125 132 139 14 6 318
Preference shares 1300 - 1300 - - - - -
Parent and fellow subsidiary borrowings 11284 - 356 285 2835 285 285 9788
Adjustment to carrying value (5.8472) {5,847 2) - - - - - -
Fiancial habihties excluding derwvatives 47221 (5847 2) 13387 586 1 2923 136 1 187 0 80291
Denvatives
Pavable 34379 - 10471 10938 7670 562 571 4167
Receivable (3,161 6) - (10207 (9878) (6833 (5200 (524) (363 4)
Adjustment to carrying value (206 7) (206 7) - - - - - -
Denvauves 69 6 (206 7) 264 1060 837 42 47 513
Notes

I Forecast future cash flows are calculated where apphicable using forward interest rates based on the nterest environment at
year-end and are, therefore, susceptible to changes in market conditions  For index-linked debt n has been assumed that RPI
will be 2 65 per cent over the life of cach bond

2 The carrying value of debt 15 calculated following various methods 1n accordance with FRS 26 'Financial [nstruments
Recogmition and Measurement’ and, therefore th:s adjustment converts the undiscounted forecast future cash flows to the
carrying value of debt 1n the balance sheet
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Market rnsk

Market nisk is the risk that movements in market rates, including foreign exchange rates, interest rates and inflation will affect the
company’s profit The management of market risk 15 undertaken with nsk limits approved by the board

The company borrows in the major global debt markets in a range of currencies at fixed and floating rates of interest, using derivatives,
where appropnate, to generate the desired effective currency profile and mterest basis

The company uses a vanety of financial instruments, including derivatives, when raising finance for its operations 1n order to manage
any exposure ansing from funding activity

Interest rate risk

The company’s fixed rate borrowings are exposed to a risk of change in their fair value due to changes in interest rates  The company’s
floaung rate borrowings are exposed to a risk of change in cash flows due to changes 1n interest rates The company uses interest rate
swap contracts and financial futures to hedge these exposures Short-term debtors and creditors are not exposed to interest rate risk

The company’s policy 15 to structure debt 1n a way that best matches the cash flows generated by its underlying assets As a UK
regulated business, revenues are determined every five years based upon a real cost of capital The preferred form of debt, therefore, 1s
sterling index-linked debt Where long-term debt s raised in a fixed rate form, the company will swap to floating rate at inception over
the life of the hability, through the use of interest rate swaps

Under an interest rate swap, the company agrees with another party to exchange at specific intervals the difference between fixed rate
and floating rate interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed notional principal amount The notional principal of these
instruments reflects the extent of the company’s involvement in the instruments, but does not represent its exposure to credit risk, which
1s assessed by reference to the fair value

The company’s revenues are determined based upon the real cost of capital fixed by the regulator for each five-year regulatory pricing
pericd The company fixes a matenal proporuion of the floating cost of debt for the duration of the five-year regulatory pricing period,
using a second layer of interest rate swaps to match the company’s revenue stream

Annually, the company enters into future contracts to hedge the remaining floating rate exposure not covered by the interest rate swaps
for the current year

Sensitvity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been prepared on the basis of the amount of net debt and the interest rate hedge positions in place as at
31 March 2008 and 31 March 2007, respectively As a result this analysis relates to positions at the balance sheet dates and 15 not
indicative of the years then ended as these factors would have vaned

The following assumptions were made 1n calculating the interest sensttivity analysis

= all fair value hedge relationships are fully effective and, therefore, there 1s no balance sheet sensitivity to interest rates with regard to
the designated debt and swaps,

» all borrowings designated at fair value through the profit and loss are effectively hedged by associated swaps and therefore there 15
no balance sheet sensitivity to interest rates (excluding the effect of accrued mnterest) with regard to the associated debt and swap
mstruments,

= the main balance sheet sensitivity to interest rates {excluding the effect of accrued interest) 1s in relation to the regulatory swaps
which swap the majority of the company’s floating rate exposure to fixed rate for the five-year regulatory period,

* the sensitivity of net finance expense to movements 1n interest rates 15 calculated on net floating rate expesures on debt and
denivatives, and on deposits  The floating leg of a swap or any floating rate debt 15 treated as not having any interest rate already set,
therefore a change in interest rates will have a full twelve month impact on interest,

*  deposus at the balance sheet date are taken and any debt or swaps maturing during the year are disregarded,

» index-linked debt 1s carmed at amortised cost and therefore the balance sheet 1s not exposed to interest rates The company has
assumed that tnflation is held constant,

= financial future contracts entered into by the company to further manage the floating interest rate exposure 1s excluded from this
analysis

= the analysis excludes the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying value of pensions and other post retirement
obligations,

= management have assessed 100 basis points as a reasonably possible movement in UK interest rate and

»  all other factors are held constant
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Sensiutivity analysis {coniinued)

Impact on profit before taxation and equity
100bp ncrease 1n interest rate
100bp decrease in interest rate

Brachets denote a reduction i profit

Repricing analysis

United Utilities Water PLC

2008 2007
£m £m
177 836
23 8) (86 3)

The following tables categorise the company’s borrowings, derivatives and cash deposits on the basis of when they reprice, or 1f earher,
mature The £130 milhon preference shares are have been classified as more than five years according to their latest redemption date of
1 October 2099 The repricing analysis demonstrates the company’s exposure te floaung rate nsk prior to the effect of financial futures

2008

Borrowings 1n hedge relationships
Fived rate instruments

Effect of swaps

Borrowings designated at fair value through profit or loss
Fixed rate instruments
Effect of swaps

Borrowings measured at amortised cost
Fixed rate mstruments
Floating rate instruments

Index-linked instruments

Effect of a fixed hedge for the term of the regulatory busmness plan

I otal borrowings

2007

Borrowings in hedge relattonships
Fixed rate mstruments
Floating rate instruments

Effect of swaps

Borrowings designated at fair value through profit or loss
Fixed rate instruments
Effect of swaps

Borrowings measured at amortised cost
Frved rate mstrumentis

Floating rate instruments

Index-linked instruments

Effect of a fixed hedge for the term of the regulatory business plan

L otal borrowings

1 year or 1-2 233 34 4-5 More than §

Total less years years years years years
£m £im im im £m £m £m
16974 4732 1485 - - - 1,075 7
- 1,2242 (148 5) - - - {10757)

1,697 4 1,697 4 - - - - -
223 1 - - - - - 223 1

- 2231 - - - - (223 1)

2231 2231 - - - . -
1660 52 02 02 03 03 i598
8250 8250 - - - -
15334 1,533 4 - - - -
2,524 4 23636 02 02 0.3 0.3 1598
- {l1840¢) 13922 4484 - - -

4,444 9 2,4435 1,392 4 4486 03 03 159 8
1 year or 1-2 23 34 4-5  More than 5

Total less years years years years years
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
22258 6738 4034 1458 - - 10028
98 98 - - - -

- 15520  (4034) (1458) - (1 002 8)
22356 22356 - - - - -
2300 - - - - - 2300

- 2300 - - - - {230y

2300 2300 - - - - -
3712 2052 52 02 02 03 160 1
5922 3922 - - - - -
12931 12931 - - - - -
22565 20905 52 02 02 03 160 1
- (29386) - 19711 967 5 - -

4,722 1 16175 52 19713 967 7 03 160 1
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Currency risk

The company’s assets are principally sterling denominated, however, the company has access to various international debt capital
markets and rarses foreign currency denomunated debt Where debt 1s denominated in a currency which 1s not sterling, the company’s
pohcy 15 generally to swap the foreign currency denominated cash flows into sterhng, through the use of foreign currengy swaps Asa
result for the majority of foreign currency denominated borrowings, the company has no material exposure to movements in exchange
rates

Under 2 currency swap the company agrees with another party to exchange the principal amount of two currencies, together with interest
amounts in the two currencies agreed by reference to a specific interest rate basis and the principal amount  The principat of these
struments reflects the extent of the company’s involvement in the instruments, but does not represent 1is exposure 1o credit risk, which
1s assessed by reference to the fair value

As the company has no matenal exposure to currency nisk no analysis has been presented
Inflation risk

The company’s index-hnked borrowings are exposed to a risk of change in the carrying value and interest habilities due to changes in the
UK RPI This form of hability 1s a good match for the company s regulated assets, which are also hnked to RPI duc 1o the revenue price
cap imposed by the regulator This price cap 1s linked to RPI and limits management’s ability to change prnices By matching the
company’s lhabilsties to 1ts assets mndex-linked debt hedges the exposure to changes n RPI and delivers a cash flow benefit, as
compensation for the inflation nisk 1s provided through adjustment to the principal rather than in cash  Management looks to 15sue index-
linked debt wherever possible, but has a limited counterparty base willing to invest 1n these instruments  The abality to 1ssue this form of
debt 15 therefore limited

The carrying value of the index-linked debt held by the company 15 as follows

2008 2007
£m £fm
Index-linked debt 1,533.4 1.293 1

The below sensitivity analysis has been prepared on the basis of the amount of index-hnked debt 1n place as at the 31 March 2008 and 31
March 2007, respectively  As a result, this analysis relates to positions at the balance sheet daies and 1s not indicattve of the years then
ended, as these factors would have vaned throughout the year The following table details the sensitivity of profit before taxation to
changes in the RPI, excluding the hedging aspect of the company’s regulatory assets, which are not classed as financial assets

2008 2007
Impact on profit before taxation and equity £m £m
| per cent increase in RPI (15 7) (143)
I per cent decrease 1n RPI 157 143

Brackets denote a reduction i profit

The analysis assumes a one per cent change in RPI having a corresponding one per cent impact on this position over a twelve-month
period It should be noted however that there 1s a ume lag by which current RPI changes impact on the profit and loss and the analysis
above does not incorporate this factor The portfolio of index-hinked debt 1s either calculated on a three or eight month lag basis
Therefore at the balance sheet date the index-linked interest and prnincipal adjustments impacting the income statement are fixed and
based upon either the previous three or elght month RPI
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Caputal risk management

The objective of the United Uttlities PLC group when managing capital 1s to maintain a capital structure that enables the company to
retain a credit rating of A3, which it believes best mirrors the Water Services Regulation Authortty’s ( Ofwat’) assumptions n relation to
capital structure

One of Ofwat’s primary duties 1s to ensure that water companies are able to finance their functions, in particular by securing a reasonable
return on thew capntal Therefore, mirrortng Ofwat’s assumptions for credit ratings (and hence capital structure) should safeguard the
company’s ability to earn a reasonable return on its capital, securing access to finance at a reasonable cost and enabling the company to
contmue as a going concem n order to provide returns for shareholders, credit investors and benefits for other stakeholders

In order to maintain a credit rating of A3 the company will need 1o manage 1its capital structure with reference to the ratings methodology
and measures used by the relevant rating agencies The ratings methodology 15 normally based on a number of key ratios {such as
Regulatory Capital Value (RCV) gearing and adjusted interest cover) and threshold levels as updated and published from time to tume by
the rating agencies

Further detail on the precise measures and methodologies used to assess water compames’ credit ratings can be found in the methodology
papers published by the rating agencies

The strategy of targeting a credit rating of A3 for the company was announced as part of the United Utilities PLC group’s interim results
announcement 1n November 2007 Ceonsistent with this strategy and in order to adjust the RCV gearing levels in line with the rating
agencies tolerance levels for an A3 credit rating, the group announced that 11 intends to return £1 5 billion to shareholders (with a
corresponding reduction n 1ts equity base) during August 2008 and reduce 1ts dividend per share by 30 per cent with effect from
February 2009
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Fair values

The farr values of financtal assets and habilities, together with the carrying amounts shown 1n the balance sheet, are as follows

2008 2008 2007 2007
Carrying Carmying
value Fair value value Fair value
£m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Non-current assets
Denvauve financial instruments
Fair value hedge derivatives 443 43 131 131
Current assets
Cash and short-term deposits - - 1,307 0 13093
[rade and other debtors 7913 791.3 2563 2563
Derivative financial instruments
Held for trading derivatives 971 971 377 377
Total current assets 888 4 8884 1,6010 16033
Financial habihities
Non-current liabthities
Trade and other creditors (89 3) (39 4) 90N 07N
Borrowings
Financial habthities designated at farr value through profit or loss (223 1) (223 1) (230 0) (230 0)
Financial Liabihities 1n & hedged relationship (1,224 2) (1,1542) (1,5520) (1 5869)
Financial habilities measured at amortised cost (2,026 0) (1,7799) (1 8234) (1,796 1)
(3.473.3) (3.1572) (3,605 4) (36130)
Denvative financial instruments
Fair value hedge denivatives (222) (222) (712 1) (72 1)
Total non-current hiabilities (3.5849) (3,268 8) {37682) (3775 8)
Current liabilitres
Trade and other creditors 492 0) 4920 @06 8) (406 8)
Borrowings
Financial iabihttes in a hedged relationship (4732) 79 0) (683 6) (7157
Financial liabihities measured at amortsed cost (498 4) (498 5) (433 1) (440 8)
(971 6) 9775) (1,116 7) (11363)
Derivative financial instruments
Held for trading derivatives 251 (251 48 3) (48 3}
Total current habihities (1488 7) (1,494 6) (1571 8) (1,611 6)

In order to determine the fair values 1n the table above all borrowings and derivatives are valued using a discounted cash flow valuation
model In determimng fair values, assumptions are made with regard to credit spreads based upon indicative pricing data

In respect of the total change duning the year in the fair value of financial habihues designated as at far value through profit or loss of
£6'9 mulhon gatn (2007 £26 3 mullion gain} £28 2 milhion gain (2007 £ty 15 attnbutable to changes in credit nsh The cumulative
impact of changes n credat spread was £30 6 miilion profit (2007 £2 4 mullion profit) The difference between the carrying amount and
the amount contracted to settle on maturity was a catrying amount decrease of £41 5 rmlhien (2007 a carrytng amount decrease of £34 6
million)
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The company participates in the following pension schemes sponsored by the United Utihties group the United Utiliies Pension Scheme
(UUPS) and the United Utihties Group of the Llectricity Supply Pension Scheme (ESPS) Both schemes are funded defined benefit
schemes which are closed to new employees UUPS also includes a defined contribution section, which constitutes less than 0 9 per cent
of the total asset value Under FRS 17 "Retirement benefits', the current service cost 15 calculated using the Projected Unit Credit Method
and will therefore increase as the members of the scheme approach retirement

The assets of these schemes are held in trust funds independent of the company’s finances

The last actuanal valuation of the UUPS was carried out as at 31 March 2007 and the ESPS was carried out as at 30 November 2007
These valuations have been updated to take account of the requirements of FRS 17 'Retirement benefits' i order to assess the position at
31 March 2008 by projecting forward from the dates of the respective valuations, and have been performed by an independent actuary,
Mercer Human Resource Consulting

On 31 March 2005, the company made lump sem payments of £110 9 mullion and £2 9 mullion to UUPS and ESPS respectively The
payments were 1n heu of the estimated company contributions that would have been payable for the defined benefit members over the
five years from 1 Apnl 2005 Following the results of the actuarial valuations, the company contributions are expected to resume from 1
April 2010 In the meanume, the company will continue to pay contributions in respect of the defined contribution members and
insurance premiums  Other payments will be made by the company i accordance with the funding agreement between the schemes’
trustees and United Unlities PLC

The company did not make any significant contributions to the defined benefit schemes for the year ended 31 March 2008 or the year
ended 31 March 2007 and does not expect to make any contributions over the year to 31 March 2009

The total defined benefit pension expense for the year was £11 2 mullion (2007 £11 4 mullien) A penston liability of £48 6 million, net
of deferred tax of £18 9 mithion, 15 included 1n the balance sheet at 31 March 2008 (2007 assct of £11 8 rmllion, net of deferred tax of
£5 0 million)

Information about pension arrangements for executive directors 15 contained th note 5

I'he main financial assumptions used by the actuary were as follows

31t March 2008 31 March 2007 31 March 2006

% Y% %

Discount rate — UUPS 6 00 520 490
Discount rate — ESPS 610 530 490
Expected retum on assets — UUPS 6 80 6 50 620
Expected return on assets — ESPS 650 630 590
Pensionable salary growth — UUPS 435 395 375
Pensionable salary growth — ESPS 4 40 4 00 380
Pension increases 340 300 2 80
Price inflation 340 300 280

The current male Life expectancies at age 60 underlying the accrued liabilities for the schemes are

2008 2007 2006
years years years
Retired member 249 238 225
Non-retired member 260 259 24 8
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As at 31 March the fair value of the schemes’ assets, together with the liabilities in the schemes’ recognised 1n the balance sheet, and the

expected rates of return were as follows

Plan assets at Long-term Value at 31  Plan assets at Long-term
31 March rate of  March 2008 31 March rate of return
2008 return 2007 expected at
expected at 31 March
31 March 2007
2008
% %o £m % %
Equuies 69.4 75 70 695 73
Gults 166 45 1716 16 4 43
Bonds 13.1 68 1350 131 51
Cash 09 45 101 10 43
Total fair value of assets 1000 1,033 7 1000
Present value of habilines (1,101.2)
Pension (hability)/asset (67.5)
Related deferred tax asset/(hiability) 189
Net pension (lability)/asset (48 6)
Details in connection with 2006 are as follows
Long-term

Equities

Gilts

Bonds

Property

Total fair value of assets
Present value of habilhities
Net retirement benefit habihity

Related deferred tax asset

Net penston habihty

Plan assets at
31 March
2006

%
666
223
110

01

1000

51

rate of return
expected at 31
March 2006
%

Value at 3§
March 2007

£m
7835
184 4
1470
113
1,126 2

(1,109 4)

16 8
(50

118

Valueat 31
March 2006

£m
746 8
2501
123 4
11
11214
(1.1384)
(170)
51
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United Utilities Water PLC

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
21 Retirement benefits (continued)

The net penston expense before taxation recogmised in the profit and loss account i respect of the defined benefit schemes 1s
summansed as follows

2008 2007

£m £m

Current service cost 224) (21 3)
Past service cost 26) 22)
Expected return on schemes’ assets 720 683
Interest on schemes’ habilities (582) (56 2)
Net pension expense before taxation (112) {114)

The above amounts are all recogmsed within operating expenses except for expected return on schemes’ assets and interest on schemes’
liabthties which have been recognised within net nterest payable and similar charges

The reconcihation of the opeming and closing pension scheme (hability)/asset 1s as follows

2008 2007
£m f£m
At beginning of the year 168 {170)
Expenses recogmsed 1n the profit and loss account (112) (114
Contnibutions paid 16 06
Actuarial (losses)/gains gross of taxation ) (747 44 6
At 31 March (675) 168
Actuarial gains and losses are recognised directly in the statement of total recognised gains and losses
The history of the schemes 15 as follows
2008 2007 2006 2005
Experience gain/(loss) on schemes’ habilities (Em) 143 287 - (23)
Percentage of scheme habilities (%) (1.3) (26) - 02
Difference between the expected and actual return on schemes’ assets (£m) (13L.4) (73 168 3 72
Percentage of scheme assets (%) (127 (0 6) 150 08
Change 1n assumptions (£m) 42 4 232 (114 8) (6 5)
Percentage of scheme habilities (%) (3.9) 2n 101 07
Amount recogmsed 1n statement of total recogmised gains and losses (£m) (74 7) 44 6 535 (16)
Percentage of scheme habilities (%) 68 40) 47 02

Durning the year the company made £0 6 million (2007 £n1l} of contributions to defined contribution schemes, recognised within
operating expenses
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

22 Called up share capital and share premmum account

Authorised share capital
1,050 000,000 ordinary shares of £1 each
223,437,000 zero per cent preference shares of £1 each

Allotted and fully paid share capital
931,930,000 ordinary shares of £1 each
93,437,000 zero per cent preference shares of £1 each

Share premium account

United Utilities Water PLC

2008 2007
£m £m
1,050 0 1,050 0
2234 2234
1,273 4 1,273 4
9319 9319
934 934
10253 10253
647 8 647 8

Zero per cent preference sharcholders are not entitled to receive notice of, attend or vote at, any general meeting of the company
However, preference shareholders recerve pnonty to other classes of shareholders on a winding up, liquidation or other return of capital

to sharcholders of the company

23 Share capital and reserves
Note Called up Share premaum  Profit and loss Total
share capital account account
£m £m £m £m
At | Aprtl 2007 1,025 3 6478 940 5 26136
Profit for the financial year - - 364 4 364 4
Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension schemes 21 - - (747) (7471
Deferred tax credit ansing on actuanal losses on
defined benefit pension schemes - - 209 209
Drvidends paid on equity shares 9 - - (299 3) (299 3)
At 31 March 2008 1,0253 647.8 9518 2,6249
24 Operating leases
Land and Plant and Land and Plant and
The company 1s committed to make the following payments buildings machinery buildings machinery
under non-cancellable operating leases during the next vear 2008 2008 2007 2007
£m £m £m fm
Non-cancellable operating leases which expire
Within one year - 0.3 - 02
Between two and five vears - 06 - 07
After five years 16 - 10 -
10 0.9 10 09

53




Notes to the financial statements (continued)

25 Reconcihation of operating profit to net cash inflow from operating activities

Operating profit

Depreciation

Amortisation of grants and contributions

Profit on disposal of tangible fixed assets

Decrease/(1increase) in stocks

(Increase)/decrease in debtors

Increase/(decrease) in creditors

Movement 1n other provisions (including pension (hability yasset)

Net cash inflow from eperating activities

26 Reconcihation of net cash flow te movement in net debt

Decrease in cash/increase m overdrafts in the year

Net cash outflow/(inflow) from decrease/(increase) in debt and lease financing
Net cash (inflow)/outflow from (decrease)/increase in hquid resources
Changes in net debt resulting from cash flows

Non-cash adjustments

Movement i net debt in the year

Net debt at beginning of the year

Net debt at 31 March

Non-cash adjustments include farr value movements, capitalised interest and indexation

27 Financing

New loans
Loans repaid
Loans 1ssued

Finance lease repayments

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing
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2008 2007

Note £m £m
6511 5687

10 3117 294 2
16 59) {(535)
4 (55) 33
05 (L))

(36 5) 43

254 (22 2)

229 317

9637 867 5

Note 2008 2007
£m £m

(62 5) (64)

1,044 6 (734 7)

(1,307 0) 569 0

(324 9) (172 1)

207 4) 600

(5323 (112 1)

(3,374 5) (3,262 4)

28 (3,906 8) (3,374 5)
2008 2007

£m £m

4993 804 9

(1,040.2) 65 1)

497 %) -

(1,038 4) 7398

©2) 51

(1,044 6) 734 7




United Utilities Water PLC

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

28 Analysis of changes 1n net debt
At 1 Apnl Cash flow Non-cash At 31 March
2007 Movements 2008
£m fm £m £m
Overdrafis (259) (62 5) - (88 4)
Parent and fellow subsidiary undertaking loans 406 497 5 - 5381
147 4350 - 497
Debt due after one year (3,542 3) (129 7) 2550 (3,4170)
Debt due within one vear (1,078 8) 670 6 (462 4) (870.6)
Finance leases (75 1) 62 - (68 9)
(4,696 2) 547 1 (207 4) {4,356 5)
Current asset investments 1,307 0 (1,307 ) - -
Net debt (3,374 5) (324 9) {207 4) {3,906 8}

29 Related party transactions

In accordance with the exemption set out in FRS 8 'Related Party Disclosures’, the company has not disclosed transactions with s
ulttmate holding company or any members of the United Utihities group United Utihties PLC 1s the ultimate contrelling party as defined
by FRS 8 'Related Party Disclosures’ United Utilities PLC, the ulumate parent undertaking, owned 22 63 per cent of the shareholding of
the ordinary share capital of THUS Group PLC untl 19 June 2007 Details of the transactions with this company during this period are
set out below

2008 2007

£m £m

Sale of services 01 03
Purchase of services 07 22
Debtor outstanding - 04

There were no amounts written-off related party debtors in the year (2007 £n:l)

30 Ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party

The financial statements of the company are consohidated in the group financial statements of the ulimate parent undertaking, United
Utiliwes PLC, a company registered in England and Wales Umited Unhties PLC 15 alse the company’s ultimate controlling party  Copies
of the financial statements of Umited Utiliies PLC may be obtained from the Company Secretary, Haweswater House, Lingley Mere
Business Park Lingley Green Avenue, Great Sankey, Warrington, WA3 3LP

55




Regulatory accounting information

Introduction

The Regulatory Accounts on pages 59 to 76 have been prepared n
accordance with the requirements of Regulatory Accounting Guidelines
1ssued by the Water Services Regulation Authonty { WSRA )

Tumover, operating profit and net operating assets for the non-appomted
business are below the 1 per cent threshold, defined by Regulatory
Accounting Guidelines However, the directors have separated out the figures
for the non-appointed business so that the current cost profit and loss
account, balance sheet and cash flow statement show the figures for the
appomted busmess only

The Operating and financial review has been presented on pages 5 to 20

Directors’ responsinlities in respect of the preparation of the regulatory
accounts

The directors consider that all Regulatory Accounting Guidelines 1ssued by
the WSRA which they consider to be applicable to these financial statements
have been followed  After making enquinies, the directors are of the opinion
that the company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foresecable future

Independent accountants’ report

United Utilities Water PLC

For this reason, they continue to adopt a going concern basis in
preparing these financial statements

In addition, the directors have responsibility for ensuring that the
company keeps proper accounting records sufficient to enable the
historical cost and current cost information required by Condition F
of the licence to be prepared, having regard to all Regulatory
Accounting Guidelines The directors are also required to confirm
in the financial statements that, in thewr opimon, the company was
m compliance with paragraph 3 1 of Condition K of the licence
relating to the availability of the nights and assets at the end of the
financial year

Information given to auditors
Each of the persons who 1s a director at the date of approval of this
report confirms that

(1) so far as the director 1s aware, there 15 no relevant audit
information of which the company's auditors are unaware, and

{2) the director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have
taken as a director 1n order to make himself/herself aware of any
retevant audit information and to establish that the company's
auditors are aware of that information

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT TO THE WATER SERVICES REGULATION AUTHORITY (“THE
WSRA”) AND UNITED UTILITIES WATER PLC (“THE COMPANY?”)

We have audited the Regulatory Accounts of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2008 on pages 59 to 76 which comprise

» the regulatory historic cost accounting statements comprising the
histenic cost profit and loss account, the statement of total
historical cost recogmsed gans and losses for the appomnted
business, and the historic cost balance sheet, and

« the regulatory current cost accounting statements for the
appointed business, compnising the current cost profit and loss
account, the current cost balance sheet, the current cost cash flow
statement, the notes to the current cost cash flow statement and
the related notes 1 to 12 including the statement of accounting
pohcies under which the Regulatory Accounts have been
prepared

This report 1s made, on terms that have been agreed, solely to the Company
and the WSRA 1n order to meet the requirements of Condition F of the
Instrument of Appointment granted by the Secretary of State for the
Environment to the Company as a water and sewerage undertaker under the
Water Industry Act 1991 {the Regulatory Licence )

Our audit work has been undertaken so that we muight state to the Company
and the WSRA those matters that we have agreed to state to them in our
report 1 order (a) to assist the Company to meet its obligation under the
company’s Instrument of Appomntinent to procure such a report and (b) to
facilitate the carrying out by the WSRA of 1ts regulatory functions, and for
no other purpose

To the fullest extent perrutted by law, we do not accept or assume

responsibility t¢ anyone other than Company and the WSRA, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed
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Basis of preparation

The Regulatory Accounts have been prepared in accordance with
Condition F of the appointment and the Regulatory Accounting
Guidelines (being versions 1 04, 203, 306, 403 and 504), the
accounting pelicies set out in the statement of accounttng policies
and, i the case of the regulatory historical cost accounting
statements, under the historical cost convention

The Regulatory Accounts are separate from the statutory financial
statements of the Company There are differences between United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice ("UK GAAP")
and the basis of preparatien of information provided in the
Regulatory Accounts because the Regulatory Accounting Guidelines
specify alternative treatment or disclosure in certamn respects

Where the Regulatory Accounting Guidelines do not specifically
address an accounting 1ssue, then they require UK GAAP to be
followed Financial iformation other than that prepared wholly on
the basis of UK GAAP may not necessanly represent a true and fair
view of the financial performance or financial position of a company
as shown 1in financral statements prepared 1n accordance with the
Companies Act 1985




Independent accountants’ report (continued)

Respective responsibilities of the WSRA, the Directors and auditors

The nature, form and content of Regulatory Accounts are determined by
the WSRA It ts not appropriate for us to assess whether the nature of
the information beng reported upon 1s suitable or approprate for the
WSRA's purposes  Accordingly we make no such assessment

The Drirectors’ responsibilities for preparing the Regulatory Accounts 1n
accordance with Regulatory Accounting Guidehnes are set out i the
statemnent of directors’ responsibihties for regulatory information on
page 36

Our responsibility 1s to audit the Regulatory Accounts in accordance
with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by
the Auditing Practices Board, except as stated in the "Basis of audit
opimion’, below and having regard to the gwidance contaned in Audat
Techmcal Release 05/03 Reporting to Regulators of Regulated
Entities’

We report to you our opmion as to whether the regulatory historical
cost accounting statements present farly, under the historical cost
convention the revenues and costs, asset and liabilities of the appointee
and its appownted business n accordance with the Company’s
[nstrument of Appointment and Regulatory Accounting Guideline 2 (3
(Gudelines for the classification of expenditure), Regulatory
Accounting Guidehine 3 06 (Guideline for the contents of regulatory
accounts) and Regulatory Accounting Guideline 4 03 (Guidehne for the
analysis of operating costs and assets) and whether the regulatory
current cost accounting statements on pages 61 to 76 have been
properly prepared in accordance with Regulatory Accounting Guideline
1 04 {Guideline for accounung for current costs and regulatory capital
values), Regulatory Accounting Guideline 3 06 and Regulatory
Accounting Guidehne 4 03

We also report to you if, in our opmnion, the Company has not kept
proper accounting records as required by paragraph 3 of Condition F of
the Regulatory Licence and whether the information 1s 1in agreement
with the Appointee’s underlying accounting records and has been
properly prepared 1n accordance with the requirements of Condition F
and, as appropnate, Regulatory Accounting Guideline 1 04 Regulatory
Accounting Guideline 2 03, Regulatory Accounting Guideline 3 06, and
Regulatory Accounting Guidehne 4 03

We read the other information contained within the Regulatory
Accounts, including any supplementary schedules on which we do not
express an audit opinton, and consider the imphications for our report 1f
we become aware of any apparent musstatements or raterial
inconsistencies with the Regulatory Accounts The other information
comprises the performance review, the notes on regulatory mformation,
and the additional information required by the Regulatery Licence
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Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland) 1ssued by the UK Auditing Practices Board.
except as noted below An audit includes examination, on a test basis,
of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the Regulatory
Accounts It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates
and judgements made by the Directors in the preparation of the
Regulatory Accounts, and of whether the accounung policies are
appropriate to the Company’s circumstances, consistently apphed and
adeguately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain ail the information
and explanauons which we considered necessary in order to provide us
with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the
Regulatory Accounts are free from material misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or other wregularity or error  However, as the nature,
form and content of Regulatory Accounts are determined by the
WSRA, we did not evaluate the overall adequacy of the prescntation of
the information, which would have been required 1If we were to express
an audit opimon under Auditing Standards

Our opmion on the Regulatory Accounts 15 separate from our opinton
on the statutory accounts of the Company on which we report, which
are prepared for a different purpose  Qur audit report in relation to the
statutory accounts of the Company (our Statutory Audit } was made
solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with
section 235 of the Companies Act 1985

Our Statutory audit work was undertaken so that we might state to the
Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them n a
Statutory Auditor s report and for no other purpose  In these
circumstances, to the fullest extent permutted by law we do not accept
or assume any responsibility 1o anyone other than the Company and the
Company’s members as a body, for our Statutory Audit work, for our
Statutory Audit report, or for the opinions we have formed n respect of
that Statutory Audit

The regulatory historical cost accounting statements on pages 59 and 60
have been drawn up in accerdance with Regulatory Accounting
Guideline 3 06 1n that infrastructure renewals accounting as applied 1n
previous years should continue to be applied and accordingly that the
relevant sections of FRS 12 'Provisions, contingent labilities and
contingent assets' and FRS 15 Tangible Fixed Assets' be disapplied
The effect of this departure from Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles, and a reconcihiation of the balance sheet drawn up on this
basis with that drawn up under Companies Act 1985 1s given on pages
74 and 75




Independent accountants’ report (continued)

Audit opinion

In our opmmion the Regulatory Accounts of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2008 fairly present in accordance with Condition F of
the Instrument of Appointment granted by the Secretary of State for the
Environment to the Company as a water and sewerage undertaker under
the Water Industry Act 1991, the Regulatory Accounting Guidelines
1ssued by the WSRA and the accounting policies set out on page 64, the
state of the Company's affars at 31 March 2008 on an historical cost
and current cost basis the historical cost and current cost profit for the
year and the current cost cash flow for the year and have been properly
prepared 1in accordance with those Conditions, Gudelmnes and
accounting policies

We are also required to report 1n respect of various specific obligations
of the Company as set out 1n 1ts Instrument of Appomntment In respect
of these obligations, we report that 1n our opimon -

(a) proper accounting records have been kept by the Appoiniee as
required by paragraph 3 of Condition F of the instrument

(b) thc information 15 in agreement with the Appointec's accounting
records and has been properly prepared n accordance with the
requrements of Condiion F and as appropniate  Regulatory
Accounting Guideline 104, Regulatory Accounting Guidehne 2 03
Regulatery Accounting guideline 306 and Regulatory Accounting
Guidehine 4 03 1ssued by the WSRA,

(c) the regulatory histonical cost accounting statemnents on pages 59 and
60 present fairly under the historical cost convention the revenues and
costs assets and habihities of the Appomtee and 1ts Appointed Business
in accordance with the company's Instrument of Appointment and
Regulatory Accounting Guideline 203, Regulatory Accounting
Guideline 3 06 and Regulatory Accounting Guideline 4 03 issued by the
WSRA, and

(d) the regulatory current cost accounting statements on pages 61 1o 63
have been properly prepared in accordance with Regulatory Accounting
Guidehne 1 04 Regulatory Accounting Guideline 3 06 and Regulatory
Accounting Guideline 4 03 1ssued by the WSRA

Polobie & Touche LLP

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Manchester Umted Kingdom

11 July 2008
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Historic cost profit and loss account

For the year ended 31 March

Note

Turnover

Operating costs (including exceptional charges of
£4 5 mihon (2007 £22 O mithon))

Historical cost depreciation

Operating income

Operating profit

Other income 4
Net interest

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation

Current tax
Deferred tax

Taxation on profit on ordinary activities
Profit for the year
Dividends

Retained profit/(loss) for the year

United Utilities Water PLC

Statement of total historical cost recognised gains and losses

for the appointed business

For the year ended 31 March

Profit for the year {before dividends)

Actuarial (losses)/gains on post-employ ment plans (net of deferred tax)

[ otal recognised gains and losses for the year

2008 2008 2008 2007 2007 2007
Non- Non-

Appointed  appointed Total Appomted appointed lotal

£m £m £m fm £m £m

1,4182 101 1,428 3 1,3100 g2 1,3182

(5827) (49} (587 6) (568 5) (43) {572 8)

(2052) - (2052) (189 0) - (189 0)

55 - 5.5 35 - 35

6358 52 6410 556 0 3o 5599

- - - 10 - 10

(193 6) - {193.6) (1377 - (137 7)

442 2 52 447.4 4193 39 4232

{94 9) (16) (96.5) (74 6) (12) (75 8)

57 - 57 (190} - 90,

(892) (16} (90.8) (93 6) (12) (94 8)

is3o 36 356.6 3257 27 3284

(296 6) 27 (299 3) {266 0) (43) (270 3)

56 4 09 573 597 (16) 581

2008 2007

£m £m

3530 3257

(53 8) 312

2992 3569
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Historic cost balance sheet
At 31 March

Fixed assets
Tangible fived assets
Investments - other

Total fixed assets

Current assets
Stock

Debtots

Cash

Short-term deposits

Total current assets

Creditors amounts falling due within one year
Overdrafis

Infrastructure renewals accrual

Creditors

Borrowings

Corporation tax payable

Total creditors

Net current (habihities)/assets

Total assets less current habihities
Creditors. amounts falling due after one year
Borrowings

Other creditors

Total creditors

Provisions for habihties and charges
Deferred tax provision

Other provisions

Deferred income — grants and contributions
Post employment (habititics)/assets
Preference share capital

Net assets employed

Capital and reserves

Called up equity share capual

Share premum

Profit and loss account

Capital and reserves

United Utilities Water PLC

2008 2008 2008 2007 2007 2007
Non - Non -
Appointed appomnted Total Appomted  appointed Total
£m £m £m £m £m £fm
7.171.7 - 1717 6,704 7 - 6,704 7
02 - 0.2 03 - 03
7,171 9 - 71719 6,705 0 - 6,705 0
34 - 34 39 - 39
394 0 14 395.4 2627 38 2665
5381 - 538.1 1,347 6 - 13476
935.3 1.4 936.9 1,614 2 338 1.618 0
(88.4) - (38 4) (259) - 259
(28.0) - (28 0) (36 9) - 369
(445 3) 39 (441 4) (3920 - (392 0)
(753 2) - (753 2) (960 8) - (960 8)
(68.1) (16) 69 7) 56 4) (1n (57 5)
(1,383 0) 23 (1,380 7} (1,472 0) an (14730
(447 5) 37 (443 8) 1422 27 144 9
6,724 4 37 6,728 1 6,847 2 27 6,849 9
(3,473 3) - (3,473 3) (36054) - (36054)
(25.5) - (25.5) (75 6) - (75 6)
(3,498.8) - (3,498 8) (3.681 0) - (3681 0)
(348 3) - (348 3) (350 9) - (3509}
99 - ©9) (10 4} - (10 4)
(92 2) - (922) 927) - 92 7)
(48 6) - (48 6) 1138 - 118
(130 0) - (130 0) (1300} - (13009
2,596 6 3.7 2,600.3 2590 27 25967
1,025 4 - 1,0254 1,025 4 - 10254
6478 - 647 8 647 8 - 6478
923.4 37 927.1 9208 27 9235
2,596.6 37 2,600 3 2,594 0 27 2,596 7

Details of reconciling items between the historic cost regulatory accounts and the statutory accoumis are provided 1n note 11
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Current cost profit and loss account for the appointed business

For the year ended 31 March

Turnover

Current cost operating costs {including exceptronal charges of £4 5 million

(2007 — £22 0 mullion))
Operating income

Working capital adjustment
Current cost operating profit
Other income

Net interest

Financing adjustment

Current cost profit on ordinary activities before taxation

Current tax
Deferred tax

Taxation on current cost profit on ordinary activities

Current cost profit attributable to shareholders

Dividends

Current cost (loss)/profit retamed

61

Note

2008 2007
£m £m
1,418.2 1,310 0
(899 4) (862 8)
41 34
522.9 450 6
21 67
5250 4573

- 10

(193 6) (1377)
480 1809
Y94 5015
(94 9) (74 6)
57 (19 0)
{89 2) (93 6)
2902 4079
(296 6) (266 0)
(6 4) 141 9




Current cost balance sheet for the appointed business

At 31 March

Fixed assets
Tangible assets
Third party contributions since 1989/90

Working capital

Short-term deposits
Overdrafts

Infrastructure renewals accrual

Net operating assets

Non-operating assets and habilities
Borrowings

Non-trade debtors

Non-trade creditors

[nvestments — other

Corporation tax payable

Total non-operating assets and habilities

Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year
Borrowings

Other creditors

Total creditors falling due after more than one year
Provisions for habihties and charges

Deferred tax provision

Post-employment (Liabilities)fassets

Other provisions

Total provisions

Prefercnce share capital

Net assets

Capital and reserves

Called up equity share capital

Share premium

Profit and loss account

Current cost reserve

Total capital and reserves
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Note 2008 2007
£m £m

5 45,881.2 43 8384
(364 0) (3149}

455172 435235

7 (148 1) 92 1)
5381 13476

(88 4) (259

(28 0) (369

45,790 8 44,716 2

(7532) {960 8)

1591 64 3

(58.9) 97N

02 03

(68 1) (56 4)

(720 9) (1,050 3)

(3,473.3) (3 605 4)

(25.5) (75 6)

(3,498.8) (3,681 0)

(348 3) {(3509)

(48.6) 118

(99 (104)

(406 8) {349 5)

(130 0) (1300)

41,034 3 395054

1,025 4 10254

6478 647 8

(147 5) (87 3)

8 39,508 6 379195
41,034 3 395054




Current cost cash flow statement

For the year ended 31 March

Current cost operating profit

Working capital adjustment

(Increase)/decrease in working capital

Receipts from other income

Current cost depreciation (net of amorusation of
deferred contributions)

Current cost profit on sale of fixed assets
Infrastructure rencwals charge

Other non-cash profit and loss items

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Returns on investments and servicing of
finance

Interest recerved

Interest paid

Interest in finance lease rentals
Non-equity dividends paid

Net cash gutflow from returns on investments
and servicing of finance

Taxation paid

Capital expenditure

Gross cost of purchase of fived assets
Recetpt of grants and contributions
Infrastructure renewals expenditure
Disposal of fined assets

Net cash outflow from investing activities

Equity dividends pmid

Management of hquid resources

Net cash inflow/{outflow) from management of
hgquid rescurces

Net cash inflow/(outflow) before financing

Financing

New bank loans

Repayment of bank loans

Caputal clement in finance lease rentals

Net cash (outflow)inflow from financing

Decrease in cash/increase in overdrafts

United Utilities Water PLC

2008 2007
2008 Non- 2008 2007 Non- 2007
Appointed appomnted Total Appointed appointed Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
5250 3o 5289 4573 39 461 2
@n 2 (67) - 67
(63) - (6 3) (179) 04 (17 5)
- - - 10 - 10
3056 - 3056 2855 - 2855
“n - 41) (34) - 34
1174 - 117 4 1130 - 1130
227 - 227 344 - 344
9582 39 962 1 863 2 43 867 5
62.4 - 624 587 - 587
2390 - (239 1) (224 3} - (224 3)
249 - 24) 29 - 29"
(46) - (4 6) on - @n
(183 7) - (183 7) (177 6) - (177 6)
(830) (12) (842) (54 0) - (54 0)
(627 0) - 6270) (456 1) - {456 1)
190 - 190 191 - 191
(126 3) - (126 3) (104 9) - {104 9)
145 - 145 42 - 42
(719 8) - (7198) (33771 - (5377
(296.6) 27 (299 3) (266 0) “43) (270 3)
809.5 - 8095 (569 0) - (569 0)
484 6 - 484 6 (741 1) - (741 1)
499 3 - 499 3 804 9 - 804 9
{1,040 2) - (1,040 2) (65 1) - 65 1)
62) - (62) (51 - (SR
547.1) - (547 1) 7347 - 7347
{62 5) - (62 5) (64) - (64
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Notes to the current cost accounts

1 Statement of accounting policies

The regulatory accounts have been prepared m accordance with the requirements of the Regulatory Accounting Guidelines tssued by the
Water Services Regulation Authonty for the modified real term financial statements suitable for regulation n the water industry They
measure profitability on the basis of real financtal capital maintenance in the context of assets which are valued at their current cost value
to the business 1he accounting polices adopted which have been applicd consistently during the year and the prior year, as set out
below

(a) Tangible fixed assets

Assets in operational use are valued at the replacement cost for current operating capacity  To the extent that the regulatory regime does
not allow such assets to earn a return high enough to justify that value, this represents a modification of the value to the business
principle  Also, no provision 1s made for the possible funding of future replacements by contributions from third parties and to the extent
that some of those assets would on replacement be so funded, replacement cost again differs from value to the business

The modern equivalent assct values from the last Asset Management Plan (AMP) are incorporated n the 2008 regulatory accounting
information  In the interveming years, values are restated to take account of changes m the general level of inflation, as measured by
changes in the Retail Price Index (RPI)

(1} Operational assets

Non-specialised operational assets are valued on the basis of open marhet value for existing use and have been expressed in real terms by
indexing using RP! ,
Speciahised operational asscts are valued on the basis of information provided by the AMP  The unamortised portion of third party
contributions reccived 1s deducted 1n artiving at net operating assets (as described below)

(1) Infrastructure assets
Mauns. sewers. impounding and pumped raw water storage reservous dams, sludge pipelines and sea outfalls are valued at replacement
cost determined principally on the basis of data provided by the AMP

{u1) Other fixed assets
All other fixed assets are valued principally on the basis of data provided by the AMP

(v} Surplus land
Surplus land 1s valued at recoverable amount, taking 1nto account that part of any proceeds to be passed on to customers under Condition
B of the instrument of Appointment

(b) Grants and other third party contributions

Grants, infrastructure charges and other third party contributions recetved since 31 March 1990 are carried forward to the extent that any
balance has not been credited to rnover The balance carried forward 1s restated for the change n the RPI for the year and treated as
deferred income

(c} Real financial capital maintenance adjustments
These adjustments are made to historical cost profit in order to arrive at profit afier the maintenance of financial capital in real terms

(1) Working caputal adpusiment
This 15 calculated by applying the change in RPI over the year to the opening total of trade debtors and stock, less trade creditors

fu} Financing adiustment

This s calculated by appiying the change m RPI over the year to the opening balance of net finance which compnises all assets and
labilities 1n the balance sheet apart from those included In working capital and excluding fixed assets, deferred taxation provision,
index-linked debt and dividends payable

(d) Allocation of costs to principal services

Direct costs are charged to the sub-service areas to which they are attributable, as defined 1in Ofwat's Regulatory Accounting Guidehne
4 03, whereas business activities and indirect costs are allocated on an activity basis using quantitative measures such as headcount and
other methods reflectng consumption of service

(e) Amounts given to charitable trusts assisting customers
Amounts given to charitable trusts assisting customers are expensed 1n the profit and loss account on an accruals basis

(f} Appomted and non-appointed activities

The company has used the guidance 1n Ofwat's Regulatory Accounting Gutdeline 3 06 in determining which of its activities are appointed
or non-appointed In summary, the appointed business 1s defined as the regulated activities of the Appointee 1 e those necessary to fuifil
the functions and duties of a water and sewerage undertaher The non-appointed business encompasses those activities for which
company 15 not a monopoly supplier or the activity involves the optional use of an asset owned by the appointed business Direct costs
attributable to the provision of services other than the appomnted business are separately allocated and 1dentified as non-appointed
Indtrect costs relating to non-appointed activitics are allocated based upon activities undertaken during the year
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Notes to the current cost accounts (continued)

2 Analysis of turnover and operating income of the appointed business

For the year ended 31 March

Turnover

Unmeasured

Measured

Trade effluent

Large user and special agreement

Revenue grants

Non-potable large user and special agreement

Rechargeable works

Bulk supplies/inter company payments

Other appointed business (third party)

Third party services - subtotal

Other sources

Total turnover

Operating income

Current cost profit on disposal of fixed assets

Total operating mcome

Working capital adjustment

United Utilities Water PLC

2008 2007

Water Sewerage Appointed Water Sewerage  Appointed
supply service business supply service business
£m £m £m £m £fm £m
3437 4010 744 7 3256 3691 694 7
2120 3211 5331 183 5 2893 472 8
- 235 235 - 230 230

511 436 947 498 477 975

- (0.1) on - 06 06

7.7 - 7.7 75 - 75

01 - 0.1 01 - 01
04 - 04 04 - 04
88 - 88 88 10 98
93 - 93 93 10 103
25 28 53 22 14 36
626 3 7919 1,418 2 3779 7321 1,310 0
37 04 41 30 04 34
37 04 41 30 04 34
09 12 21 29 38 67
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Notes to the current cost accounts (continued)

3 Current cost operating costs for the year ended 31 March 2008

Service analysis

Water supply

United Utilities Water PLC

Sewerage service

Sludge
Resources Water treatment  Sewerage Total
and supply Sewage and service appointed
treatment Distribution  subtotal  Sewerage treatment disposal subtotal business
£fm £m £m £m fm £m £m £m

Direct costs
Employment costs 94 10,0 19.4 4.7 94 78 219 413
Power 84 7.8 162 30 133 53 216 378
Hired and contracted services 24 147 17.1 10.3 49 78 230 401
Matenals and consumables 93 0.4 97 04 53 46 103 200
Service charges 145 - 14.5 20 40 - 60 205
Bulk supply imports 12 - 12 - - - - 1.2
Other direct costs 1.2 09 21 04 02 0.1 07 2.8
Total direct costs 46 4 338 80.2 208 371 256 835 1637
General and support 204 218 419 78 244 169 491 910
expenditure
Total functional expenditure 668 55.3 1221 286 615 425 1326 2547
Business activihies
Customer services 368 382 75.0
Scientific services 80 26 106
Other business activities 33 33 6.6
Total business activities 48.1 44 1 922
Local authornity rates 369 227 596
Doubtful debts 23.7 30.0 537
Exceptional tems 24 2.1 4.5
Total operating expenditure less third party services 2332 2315 464 7
Thard party services - operating expenditure 17 - 117
Total operating expenditure 2449 2315 476 4
Capital maintenance
Infrastructure renewals charge 12.4 466 590 583 - 01 584 1174
Current cost depreciation
- service activities 691 262 953 207 115.1 276 162 8 2581
- business activities 276 254 530
Amortisation of grants 46) a1 (7.7
Capual maintenance excluding third party services 1773 243 5 4208
Thard party services
- current cost depreciation 22 - 22
Total capital maintenance 179.5 2435 423.0
Total operating costs 424 4 4750 899.4
CCA (MEA) values
Service activities 4,714.9 10,1380 14,8529 27,2810 2,8775 616.8 30,775 3 45,628 2
Business activities 103 6 1057 209.3
Total 14,956 § 30,881.0 45,8375
Services for the third parties 437 - 43.7
Total _ 150002 30,881 0 45,881 2

The depreciation charge of £5 1 mullion on IT systems owned by United Utilities Water PLC, but recharged to other United Utilities
companies, has been reclassified as operating expenditure tn accordance with RAG 4 03
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Notes to the current cost accounts (continued)

3 Current cost operating costs (continued) for the year ended 31 March 2007

Service analysis

Water supply

United Utilities Water PLC

Scwerage service

Sludge
Resources Water treatment  Sewerage Total
and supply Sewage and service  appointed
treatment Dustribution  subtotal  Sewerage  treatment disposal subtotal business
£m £m £m £m fm £m fm £m

Direct costs
Employment costs 103 88 191 72 93 75 240 431
Power 89 93 182 48 16 6 72 286 46 8
Hired and contracted services 29 166 195 78 34 87 199 394
Matenals and consumables 90 03 g3 - 44 43 87 180
Service charges 138 - 138 20 39 - 59 197
Buik supply imports 12 - 12 - - - - 12
Other direct costs 09 12 21 03 02 01 06 27
Total direct costs 470 362 832 221 378 278 877 1709
General and support 181 212 193 68 158 173 399 792
expenditure
Functionai expenditure 65| 574 1225 289 536 451 1276 2501
Operating expenditure
Customer services 351 363 714
Sciennfic services 76 43 19
Other business activities 29 30 59
Total bustness activities 456 435 892
Local authority rates 240 306 546
Doubtful debts 171 217 388
Exceptional tems 107 113 220
Total opex less third party services 2199 234 8 4547
Third party services operating expenditure 96 - 96
Total operating expenditure 2295 234 8 4643
Capital maintenance
Infrastructure renewals charge 118 436 554 575 - 01 576 1130
Current cost depreciation
- service activities 659 255 914 196 1079 263 153 8 2452
- business activities 24 7 203 450
Amortisation of grants 39) {2 8) 67N
Capital maintenance excluding third party services 167 6 2289 3965
Third party services
- current cost depreciation 20 - 20
Total capital mamntenance 169 6 2289 3985
Total operating costs 399 1 463 7 862 8
CCA (MEA) values
Service activities 44799 96885 141684 26,193 5 2,6711 5699 29,434 5 436029
Business activities 1020 953 1973
Total 142704 295298 43 300 2
Services for the third parties 382 _ 382
Total 14 308 6 29,5298 43,8384

The depreciation charge of £3 0 million on IT systems owned by Unued Unliics Water PLC but recharged to other Umited Utilities
companies, has been reclassified as operating expenditure in accordance with RAG 4 03
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Notes to the current cost accounts (continued)

4 Other income

Net rents receivable

5 Current cost analysis of fixed assets by asset type as at 31 March 2008

Total services

Gross replacement cost
At 1 Apnl 2007

RPI adjustment
Disposals

Additions

At 31 March 2008

Depreciation

At 1 April 2007
RPI adjustment
Disposals

Charge for the year

At 31 March 2008

Net book value
At 31 March 2008

At 31 March 2007

Water services

Gross replacement cost
At Y Apnl 2007

RPI adjustment
Disposals

Addstions

At 31 March 2008
Depreciation

At 1 Aprid 2007
RPI adjustment
Disposals

Charge for the year
At 31 March 2008
Net book value

At 31 March 2008

At 31 March 2007

United Utilities Water PL.C

2008 2007
£m fm
- 10
Specialised Non-specialised Other
operational operational Infrastructure tangible
assets assets assets assets Total
£m £m fm £m £fm
93955 144 5 37,8158 4507 47,806 5
3522 51 1,424 8 153 1,797 4
(505 (72) . (390 {96 8)
440 8 122 1923 753 7206
10,1380 1546 39,4329 5022 50,2277
36548 599 - 253 4 3,968 1
136 1 20 - 83 146 4
503 (70) - 291) (86 4)
2507 74 - 603 3184
3,991.3 623 - 2929 4,346 5
6,146 7 923 394329 209.3 45,8812
5,740 7 846 378158 1973 43,8384
Specialised Non-speccialised Other
operational operational Infrastructure tangtble
assets asscts assets assets Total
fm £m £m fm £m
33999 884 118182 244§ 15,550 6
1274 31 4454 84 5843
(17 8) (53) - (21 3) (44 6)
1561 64 879 361 2865
3,665 6 9226 12,3515 267 1 16,376 8
10639 360 - 1421 1,242 ¢
395 12 - 48 455
(17 6) (52) - (15 6) 384)
No 43 - 322 127 5
1,176 8 363 - 1635 1,376 6
2,488.8 563 12,3515 103 6 15,000 2
23360 324 11.8182 1020 14 308 6
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Notes to the current cost accounts (continued)

5 Current cost analysis of fixed assets by asset type as at 31 March 2008 (continued)

Sewerage services

Gross replacement cost
At 1 April 2007

RPI adjustment
Disposals

Additions

At 31 March 2008
Depreciation

At 1 Apnl 2007
RP1 adjustment
Disposals

Charge for the year
At 31 March 2008

Net book value
At 31 March 2008
At 31 March 2007

6 Repulatory capital value {RCY)

Closing RCV at 31 March 2007

RCV mnflaticn adjustment

Opeming RCV at | Apnil 2007

United Utilities Water PLC

Specialised  Non-speciahised Other

operational operational Infrastructure tangible
assets assets assets assets Total
£m £m £fm £m £m
59956 561 259976 206 6 32,2559
224 8 20 979 4 69 1.213 1
(327 19 - (17 6} {522)
2847 58 104 4 392 434 1
6,472 4 620 27,0814 2351 33,850 9
25909 239 - 13 27261
96 6 08 - 35 1009
327 (18 - 13 5) (48 0)
1597 31 - 28 1 190 9
28145 60 - 1294 2,969 9
3,6579 360 27,0814 105 7 30,881.0
34047 322 259976 953 29,529 8

Capital expenditure (excluding infrastructure rencwals expenditure)

Enfrastructure renewals expenditure
[nfrastructure renewals charge
Grants and contributions

Current cost depreciation

Outperformance of regulatory assumpuons {5 years 1n arrears)

Closing RCYV at 31 March 2008

Average RCV (2007/08 year average prices)

£m

69153

260 5
71758

5909
1211
(1128)
(16 0)
(3332)
@27

7,383 1

7,159 1

The figures tn this table are consistent with those published by Ofwat in their letter RD09/07 (inflated to 2007/8 prices) and therefore do
not agree with other actual values reflected n the company's regulatory financial statements The differences from actual values wiil not
affect price limits 1n the 2005-10 price review period Capital efficiencics wall be taken nto account in the calculations of price himuts for
the 2010-15 price review period All costs have been indexed to March 2008 (RPI - 212 1) prices, except for the average RCV, which 1s
shown at year average prices (RP] - 208 6) n accordance with Ofwat's regulatory accounting gindelines

In the previous price contro! period {2000-03), around £200 million of funding was provided to deliver a number of obligations
primanly relating to Unsatisfactory Intermittent Discharges (UIDs) of wastewater for that period, which have been camed over nto
2005-10 UUW n its negotiations with the Environment Agency and Ofwat 1s seeking to finahise requirements relating to those UID
outputs The business expects the bulk of this capital expenditure to be incurred over the next 2-3 years
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United Utilities Water PLC

Notes to the current cost accounts (continued)

6  Regulatory capital value (continued)

Al the last price review, 1t was also recognised that there was potential for additional investment relating to projects that were not part of
the company’s 2005-10 regulatory contract, but which may be confirmed as additional obligations during this period by the regulators

These potential projects, which primarily relate to UIDs from wastewater continue to be the subject of investigations and studies which
are driving discussions with the regulators

A planming mquiry was held in October 2006 which considered three appeals for UIDs discharging to inland waters to help establish
principles going forward [he inspector’s findings were pubhished 1n January 2007 Based on the outcome of the inquiry, the company
made an tmitial submission to Ofwat in October 2007 which was endorsed by Defra on 23 May 2008, to address a first set of UIDs The
funding implications of this submission have yet to be determined by Ofwat A further planning inquiry was held in December 2007
which considered appeals for seven UIDs discharging to coastal waters The inspector’s findings were published in February 2008 As a
result of the two planning inquines, a further two submissions will be made to Ofwat in August 2008 and March 2009 Altogether these
three submissions should allow the related investment programme, estimated te be up to £700 million, to be funded through price Limits
and deliver additional growth i the RCV

7  Working capital

2008 2007
£m £fm
Stocks 34 39
Trade debtors (see below) 1490 122 8
Measured income accrual 501 533
Prepayments and other debtors 357 221
Trade creditors 477 (20 3)
Deferred income — customer advance receipts (853) 813
Short-term capital creditors (175.7) (13 1)
Accruals and other creditors (776) (79 %)
Total working capital (148 1) 92 1)
Further details 1n connection with trade debtors are sct out below
2008 2007
£m £m
Measured household 204 150
Unmeasured household 635 553
Measured non-household 3os 254
Unmeasured non-household 13 109
Gther 233 162
Trade debtors 149 0 122 8
8 Movement on current cost reserve
2008 2007
£m £m
At 1 Aprd 37,919.5 36,il105
RPI adjustments
Fixed assets 1,651 1 2,007 3
Working caputal 2n (67)
Financing (48 0) {180 9)
Grants and third party contributions (119) (127)
Other adjustment - 20
At 31 March 39,508 6 379195

The other adjustment relates to a prior year reconciling item between the Regulatory Accounts and the June Return  This adjustment has
been made to bring the 2007 Regulatory Accounts and the 2007 June Return into alignment
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United Utilittes Water PLC

Notes to the current cost accounts (continued)

9 Information in respect of transactions with any other business or activity of the appointee or any associated company

To the best of thewr knowledge the directors of the company declare that all appropriate transactions with associated companies have
been disclosed and materal transactions with associated companies are at arm's length and no cross-subsidy has occurred The

materiahity level of transactions used for reporting 15 0 5% of umnover

Borrowings and sums lent
The following loans from associated companies existed at 31 March 2008

£m Interest rate Repayment date
United Utilities PLC  US $ 400 0 million bonds 2087 6 88% August 2028
North West Water LLLC  £364 5 mullion loan 2055 6 18%to 7 25% July 2034
United Utltties PLC  Loan facihity of £300 0 mullion 2231 5 81%10 6 30% OCn demand

The company operates a daily balancing sweep banking arrangement with its parent United Utihities PLC  This has resulted in a £39 |
mithon inter-company creditor balance together with £1 0 million net interest payable for the year

The fellowing loans to associated companies existed at 31 March 2008

£m [nterest rate Repayment date
Umited Utthties PLC 400 593%to 7 00% On demand
United Unihties Investment Holdings (Water) Limited 497 4 6 45% May 2008

Dividends paid to associated undertakings

During the year ordinary dividends payable to United Unlhines North West PLC totalled £299 3 mullion  This compnised a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2007 of £196 3 milhion and an interim dividend of £103 0 millhon A seven per cent
preference share dividend of £9 1 milhion has also been included within net interest payable

Dividend policy

The board reviewed the capital structure and dividend policy of the company in November 2007 when 1t approved in principle a one-off
return of capital of £550 0 milhon as a special dividend  As a result of this special distribution, there will be a 30 per cent reduction in
the 2008/09 dividend payment when compared to the 2007/08 dividend The board expects the special dividend and revised dividend
policy to increase the company’s geaning level of net debt to regulatory capital value to the upper end of the Ofwat range (55 to 65 per
cent for the 2005-10 price control period) and to enable 1t to maintain a sustainable capital structure consistent with the board’s target
credit rating of A3

Transfer of assets by or to the appointee
There were no transfers of assets or habilities by or to the company 1n excess of the matenahty limit
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Untted Utilities Water PLC

Notes to the current cost accounts (continued)

9 Information n respect of transactions with any other business or activity of the appointee or any associated company
{continued)

Supply of services

Services supphed to the company by associated companies

Nature of transaction Company Terms of supply 2008
Total value

of service

£fm

Group management charge  United Utiliies PLC Recharge of costs (see note below) 127
Accommodation United Utihittes Facilities Competitive Letting 98

Management Linmited

Note The group management charge of £12 7 mullion (2007 £10 0 mullion) from United Utlines PLC represents 38 7 per cent (2007
43 5 per cent) of the total management charge to group companies  The group management charge represents the recharging of costs
mcurred centrally on behalf of group compames This includes the chief executive’s office, chairman’s effice, strategy, finance, company
secrelary, policy, corporate communtcations and human resources The costs are allocated to group companies on the basis of time spent
by each support area (as 1dentified by the relevant managersfemployees of these areas)

Services supplied by the company to associated compantes

Nature of transaction Company Terms of supply Total value
of service

£fm

Shared services United Utihties Electricity Recharge of costs 88

Services Limited

Shared services United Utilittes Electricity Litd Recharge of costs 04

Note Shared services mainly include procurement and transport services

Turnover of associated companies based on the Regulatory Accounting Guideline 504 commentary for the year ended
31 March 2008

2008

£m

United Utihines Facthties Management Limited 273
United Uuhues Electncity Services Limited 2289
United Utihies Electneity Limited 2237

United Utihires PLC -
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Notes to the current cost accounts (continued)

10 Interest rate risk profile

At 31 March

Maturity profile

Due within one vear

Due between one and two years

Due between two and five years

Due between five and twenty years

Due after more than twenty years
Botrowings (excluding preference shares)
Preference share capital

Total borrowings

Overdrafis
Less Short term deposits (intercompany loan)

Net debt

At 31 March

Maturity profile

Due within one year

Due between one and two years

Due between two and five vears

Due between five and twenty years

Due after more than twenty years
Borrowings (excluding preference shares)
Preference share capital

Total borrowings

Overdrafts
Less Short term deposits (intercompany loan)

Net debt

United Utilities Water PLC

2008 2008 2008 2008
Fixed rate  Floating rate Index-linked Total
£m £m £m im
478 4 2748 - 7532
148 8 119 - 160.7
08 2336 - 2344
8468 107 0990 1,066 5
4818 2055 1,324 4 2,0117
1,956 6 736 5 1,533 4 4,226 5
1300

4,356.5

884

(338 1)

3.906 8

2007 2007 2007 2007
Fixed rate Floating rate Index-linked Total
£m fm £m f£m
8790 818 - 960 8
408 6 243 2 - 651 8
146 5 2337 - 3802
8302 174 2007 10483
432 7 - 1092 4 1,5251
2,6970 576 1 1,293 1 4,566 2
1300

46962

259

(1,347 6)

3,374 5

The disclosure i respect of 2007 has been represented using a maturity profile approach, as the directors consider this to better reflect

the requirements of RAG 3 06
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United Utilities Water PL.C

Notes to the current cost accounts (continued)

11 Differences between historic cost regulatory accounts and statutory accounts

Profit and loss account
Operating profit

Profit before tax

Tax

Balance Sheet

Tangible fixed assets
{net book value)

Short-term deposits

Statutory
(UK GAAP)

t
El

(=3
o

4575

@31

7,1789

Regulatory
Total Business

i
=]

6410

4474

(90 8)

71717

5381

Difference

w
3

(1on

1o

23

(72)

5381
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Explanation of difference

During 2007/08, £2 1 malhon (2007 £3 7 million) of expenditure
relating to aqueduct security of supply work and £4 1 milhion
(2006707 £ml) of expenditure relaung to G5 flooding programme
has been capitahised in the statutory accounts based on the
Company’s interpretation of FRS 15 '"Tangible Fixed Assets' and
the Company has used a five-year perniod 1o calculate the
infrastructure  renewals charge In the rcgulatory accounts,
expenditure on aqueduct secunty of supply work and the DG5S
flooding programme has been classified as infrastructure renewals
expenditure and a 15 year peniod has been used to calculate the
infrastructure renewals charge based upon the Company’s
interpretation of RAG 2 03 These two items have resulted i an
additional £109 mullion (2007 £78 mllion) nfrastructure
renewals charge 1n the regulatory accounts An adjustment of £2 &
million (2007 £2 4 millton) has also been made to the deferred
taxation charge as a result of this treatment

In addition, due to change in accounting for revenue and debt
associated with ‘Live the occupter’ (LTO) £0 9 milhon (2007 £mil)
has been recorded as turnover net of bad debt charge m the
regulatory accounts, as requested by Ofwat  Neither the LTO
turnover nor the bad debt charge has been recorded i the statutory
accounts An adjustment of £0 3 milhion (2007 £nil) has alse been
made to the deferred taxation charge as a result of this treatment

Fhe difference in tax represents the current and deferred tax impact
of the regulatory adjustments detaled above

In the preparation of the statutory accounts, the company has
followed industry practice and applied the infrastructure renewals
accounttng basis as set out in FRS 15 'Tangible Fixed Assets’ An
infrastructure renewals accrual of £217 million (2007 £353
muthon) 1s within fixed assets in the statutory accounts However
for the purposes of the regulatory accounts Ofwat has requested
that RS 15 'Tangible Fixed Assets’ 1s not apphied for infrastructure
renewals accounting  The regulatory accounts nfrastructure
renewals accrual of £28 0 mullion (2007 £36 9 million) 15 therefore
shown within creditors falling due within one year n the regulatory
accounts  The difference between the infrastructure renewals
accrual in the statutory accounts and that n the regulatory accounts
anses from the differences in nterpretation of infrastructure
renewals accounting policies as evplained n the profit and loss
section above  The statutory accounts fixed assets include the
cumulative value of the aqueduct security of supply work and DGS
flooding programme capitalisation of £28 9 million (2007 £228
million)

Short-term deposits in the regulatory balance sheet include loans to
group companies These balances are classified in debtors falling
due within one year within the statutory balance sheet




United Utilities Water PLC

Notes to the current cost accounts (continued)

11 Differences between historic cost regulatory accounts and statutery accounts (continued)

Creditors amounts
falling due within one
year

Creditors amounts
falling due after one year

Provisions for Liabthties
and charges (mncluding
pensions hiability)

Preference share capital

(UK GAAP)

Statutory

*
3

(1,4887)

(3,584 9)

{416 7)

Regulatory
Total Business

th
3

(1,3807)

(3,498 8)

(499 0)

(1300)

Difference

[
3

=
]
<

861

(823)

(130 0)
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Explanation of difference

Per RAG 3 06 the £130 0 mulhon (2007 £130 0 mullion) preference
shares have been separately disclosed on the face of the regulatory
balance sheet  As these shares may be redeemed by not less than
30 days written notice served by the company or the sharcholder,
they have been classified within creditors falling due within one
year within the statutory accounts

The mfrastructure renewals accrual of £28 O mulhion (2007 £369
milhon} 15 disclosed 1n creditors in hne with RAG 3 06 but the
equivatent figure of £21 7 mulhon (2007 £35 3 million) 1s shown
within tangible fixed assets in the statutory accounts

In the regulatory accounts deferred grants are classified within
provisions for liabihities and charges in line with RAG 306
However, these amounts are classified within creditors due within
one year (E6 1 mullion) and creditors falling due after one year
(£86 1 nullion)

As detailed above, deferred grants are classified within provisions
for habihiies and charges n the regulatory accounts in line with
RAG 3 06 but within creditors falling due after onc year in the
statutory accounts

Provisions are £92 2 mullion higher 1n the regulatory accounts due
to the classification of deferred grants as detailed above This
mcrease is partially offset by a lower deferred tax provision (£9 9
mithen) 1n the regulatory accounts due to the mmpact of the
difference n the infrastructure renewals policy and capitalisation of
the aqueduct secunty of supply work and the DG35 flooding
programme between the statutory and regulatory accounts

Per RAG 3 06 the £130 0 million (2007 £130 0 oullion) preference
shares have been separately disclosed on the face of the regulatory
balance shect As these shares may be redeemed by not less than
30 days written notice served by the company or the shareholder
they have becn classified within creditors falling due within one
year within the statutory accounts




United Utilities Water PLC
Notes to the current cost accounts (continued)

12 Directors’ pay and standards of performance

During the year ended 31 March 2008 remuneration has been paid by the company 1o the directors as a result of arrangements linking
directors’ remuneration to levels of performance against service standards 1n connection with activibes subject to price regulation

For the purposes of this disclosure the company’s directors can be sphit into three categornes

¢  United Utilities Water PLC (UUW PLC) directors (For the purpose of this disclosure, C Cormish, who sits on the boards of
United Utilines PLC and UUW PLC s classified in his role as a director of United Utihities PLC)

s United Utilittes PLC directors (which includes C Cormish and T Welier), and

¢ Non-executive directors

At the start of each financial year or the date of appowntment, whichever 1s later, a bonus scheme 15 implemented for all employees
including directors  Through the United Utilities bonus scheme, the UUW PLC directors received remuneration linked to water service
standards in order to ensure that the directors are incentivised to deliver improvements 1n those standards  As part of the scheme, thewr
performance was assessed against the following walter service measures

Measure Target  Actual
1 Achieve the target percentage score 1n the customer satisfaction index {(experience rating) 77 73
2 Achieve the target ponts score in Ofwat’s overall performance assessment (OPA) 404 343
3 Achieve the quality outputs relating to treatment works, UIDs and flooding register 1,322 1,342
4 Achievement of NW90 ferrous water mains outputs 682 650
5 Number of bacteriological compliance failures at treatment werks (including E coh) 6 8
6 Achieve reduction 1n lcakage levels (MV/day) 465 462
7 Achievement of Relative Efficiency on Operating expenditure for water supply Band A Band B
8  Achievement of Relauve Efficiency on Operating expenditure for sewerage service BandB BandC

Details of the bonus arrangements for the UUW PLC directors, 1n respect of the measures 1dentified above, for the year ended 31 March
2008 are as follows

Director Service retated bonus
J Barnes £ml
M Beesley £mil
C Brook £nil
G Dixon £4 719
C Elphick £3 983
B Hurd ) £2.474
I McAulay £nul
G Sims f£ad
M Wright £nil

The bonus for achieving each of these standards above was based on a balanced scorecard for both company and deparimental
objectives The remainder of the directors” salary was based on a compettive benchmark  In armving at an outcome for the bonuses
standards of performance are assessed by the United Utilitnes PLC Remuncration Commuttee to ascertain whether targets were achieved
In addition, the directors also reviewed relevant reports from Ofwat in assessing the achievement of standards of performance

For the forthcoming year, the United Utilities PLC bonus scheme has been assessed and continues to reflect the importance of achieving
service standards Performance will again be assessed against key measures including leakage, bactenological compliance and OPA
scores, which are routinely used by Ofwat to determine company performance

The non-executive directors were paid no remuneration hnked to water service standards The Unnted Utihiies PLC directors also partake
in the Group bonus scheme as documented in the United Utilities PLC accounts and recerve no bonus tn respect of service standards

This note should be read in conjunction with note 3 to the annual report and financial statements which provides information in respect
of the total directors’ remuneration
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